
Plan Commission Agenda
October 08, 2024 - 7:00 PM 

Hybrid Meeting In Person: Middleton City Hall, Council Chambers Virtual Zoom 
Meeting ID: 843 4708 5953 Password: 716337

Posted on the City's web site at meetings.cityofmiddleton.us

Call to Order & Roll Call

Approval of Minutes

1.) Plan Commission Minutes of September 24, 2024

Agenda Items

1.) Resolution #2024-48: To Approve a Conditional Use Permit for a Medical Clinic and 
Ambulatory Surgery Center, 8124 Forsythia Street (PC-2673)
BACKGROUND: Application materials were reviewed at the 09/24/24 Plan 
Commission meeting and can be found in that agenda packet. 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution #2024-48: To Approve a Conditional Use 
Permit for a Medical Clinic and Ambulatory Surgery Center in the Airport Road 
Business Park. 

ENCLOSURES: Resolution #2024-28, Findings of Fact dated September 26, 2024. 

2.) Certified Survey Map - 4 Lot Subdivision, 2159 Allen Blvd. (PC-2654)
BACKGROUND: This CSM would subdivide a vacant 7.1 acre parcel into four lots 
with dimensions that would support development that can adhere to zoning 
regulations. See Planning Staff Report for details. (M.O.)

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the CSM with the contingencies listed in the staff 
report.

ENCLOSURES: Staff Report date 10/03/24; Proposed CSM with engineering staff 
feedback; Pertinent excerpts from developer's Environmental Assessment checklist 
submittal 

3.) Referral to Committees - Preliminary Plat and Site Plan for Ziegler Farm 
Neighborhood by Veridian Homes, Lands East and West of High Road (PC-2674)
BACKGROUND: VH Acquisitions (Veridian) has submitted a preliminary plat 
covering 85 acres of land straddling High Road between Graber Pond and the 
Pheasant Branch Conservancy. The proposed development consists of a mix of single-
family residences (173 units), park, and conservancy land uses connected by a trail 
network that completes a missing link between the Caneel/High Rd. intersection and 1

file://ch2012r2ob/FormsandTemplates/meetings.cityofmiddleton.us


Pheasant Branch Ridge Park. On October 22, the Plan Commission will hold a public 
hearing on the request to rezone the property. Consistent with Section 19.04(2) of the 
subdivision ordinance, the PC must approve, approve conditionally, or reject the 
preliminary plat within 90 days of submittal--in this case, by December 12. (M.O.)

RECOMMENDATION: Refer the preliminary plat and site plan to the following 
committees so they have an opportunity to provide feedback to the PC, preferably no 
later than Nov. 20:
• Conservancy Lands Committee
• Parks, Recreation, and Forestry Commission
• Pedestrian/Bicycle/Transit Committee
• Public Works Committee
• Water Resources Management and Stormwater Utility Commission

ENCLOSURES: Zoning submittal, Preliminary Plat submitted 9/13/24, Pertinent 
excerpts from developer's Environmental Assessment 

4.) Official Map - Concept Review of Proposed Revisions (PC-652)
BACKGROUND: Planning staff request guidance regarding seven proposed revisions 
to the City's Official Map. For details, see Planning staff memo dated 10/3/24. (M.O.)

RECOMMENDATION: Direct staff to revise the official map based on the proposed 
changes, and refer the draft official map to the PBTC, PRFC, and PWC as indicated 
in the memo.

ENCLOSURES: Staff memo dated 10/03/24; Current Official Map 

5.) Presentation and Discussion of Potential Impacts to the City from the Town of 
Westport's Petition to Incorporate (PC-525)
BACKGROUND: The Town of Westport has begun circulating a petition to 
incorporate as a Village. The City of Middleton and the Town of Westport have a long 
history of intergovernmental decisions. Staff will provide a presentation at the meeting 
on potential impacts to the City from the Town's actions (A.A.). 

RECOMMENDATION: Discussion, potential recommendation to Common Council. 

ENCLOSURES: History of intergovernmental actions and related documents. 

6.) Zoning Ordinance (Chapter 10) - Continue Discussion of Potential Revisions (PC-
2611)
BACKGROUND: As requested at a previous PC meeting, staff is providing building 
height definitions based on Middleton's former ordinance (a definition that is still used 
by Fitchburg) as well as Madison's ordinance. (M.O.)

RECOMMENDATION: Provide feedback and guidance to staff.

ENCLOSURE: Planning Staff Memo dated 10/03/24 

Adjourn 2



Posted: 10/03/24

It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at this 
meeting to gather information; however, no action will be taken by any governmental body at this meeting other than the governmental body 
specifically referenced in this notice.

Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the American With Disabilities Act that requires the meeting or materials at the meeting 
to be in an accessible location or format must contact the City Administrator at (608) 821-8350, 7426 Hubbard Ave., Middleton, WI at least 24 
hours prior to the commencement of the meeting so that any necessary arrangements can be made to accommodate each request.

3



 

PLAN COMMISSION
City of Middleton

Tuesday, September 24, 2024

MEETING MINUTES 
Meeting materials available at: https://www.cityofmiddleton.us/112/Agendas-Minutes 
Video recording will be posted at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=L322f9mIhxA 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

Vice-Chair Janairo called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Members Present at City Hall: Nick Adams (PRFC representative), Chris Harp, Lisa Janairo 
(Council representative), Kurt Paulsen, Erin Summers
Members Participating Online: None
Absent: Randy Bruce, Kurt Sonnentag (Mayor’s designee and chairperson)
Staff Present: Abby Attoun, Mark Opitz, Daphne Xu

PUBLIC HEARING

Item #1:  Request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Medical Clinic and Ambulatory 
Surgery Center, Applicant HGA on Behalf of Owner Golf Green Storage, 8124 Forsythia 
Street (PC-2673)

This hearing pertains to a 15,500 SF, single-story outpatient health center on an approximately 1.77 
acre lot. The General Development Plan (GDP) (as amended in March 2005) for the Airport Road 
Business Park lists medical clinics and ambulatory surgery centers as a conditional use. 

Chair Janairo opened the hearing at 7:00 p.m. Staff reported that they received no statements prior to 
the hearing. There being no one present wishing to speak, Janairo closed the hearing at 7:01 p.m.

MINUTES OF AUGUST 27, 2024

Janairo declared the minutes to be approved as drafted. 

AGENDA ITEMS

Item #1:  Request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Medical Clinic and Ambulatory
Surgery Center, Applicant HGA on Behalf of Owner Golf Green Storage, 8124 Forsythia 
Street (PC-2673)

Attoun summarized her staff report and recommendation as well as a meeting she had with the 
applicants. Noting that the General Development Plan for this Planned Unit Development does not 
list standards for reviewing a conditional use, staff and commissioners discussed the CUP 
procedures defined in Section 10.10.32. Paulsen advised that the findings of fact include that the 
project is consistent with the City’s comprehensive plan and surrounding land uses with no adverse 
impacts. Responding to questioners, Jason Anzalone (speaking on behalf of the developer) stated 

Plan Commission Minutes of September 24, 2024

Page 1 of 24

https://www.cityofmiddleton.us/112/Agendas-Minutes
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=L322f9mIhxA


Plan Commission Minutes 08/27/24 2

that the 62 proposed parking stalls is already reduced below the national average of 75 for a facility 
of this size, but the parking plan takes into account the facility’s anticipated full patient and staff 
volume along with any ancillary service.

Motion by Paulsen, seconded by Adams, to direct staff to prepare findings of fact in support of 
granting the conditional use permit. Motion passed 5-0.

Item #2: Specific Implementation Plan Modification for Middleton Glen Addition - 6720
Century Ave (PC-2360)

This application pertains to a proposed sunroom addition on an existing patio facing Pheasant 
Branch Rd., resulting in an addition of approximately 831 SF of impervious surface area to the 
property. Xu noted the receipt of a letter from the applicant.

Motion by Paulsen/Adams to approve the site plan modifications as a minor SIP modification. 
Motion passed 7-0.

Item #3: Zoning Ordinance (Chapter 10) - Continue Discussion of Potential Revisions (PC-
2611) (20:00 of meeting recording)

Opitz reviewed his 9/19/24 memo summarizing measurements and observations pertaining to five 
other multifamily projects in the city. Commissioners discussed various methods for measuring 
building height and noted that the current ordinance contains provisions requiring building step-
backs in certain circumstances to mitigate building height in relation to adjoining residential land 
uses. They also reviewed a statement provided by Bill Connors of Smart Growth Greater Madison.  

Motion by Paulsen, seconded by Janairo, to direct staff to prepare two options for consideration at 
the next meeting: one that defines building height in relation to the front of the structure / front lot 
line (as was found in the former ordinance) and the other based on Section 28.134 of Madison’s 
ordinance. Motion passed 5-0.

ADJOURNMENT

As agenda items for the next meeting, Paulsen requested that staff prepare a brief informational 
presentation and discussion on the impact to the City of Middleton resulting from the recent action 
by the Town of Westport to seek incorporation, and Janairo requested that staff provide an update on 
the status of the subdivision ordinance rewrite project. 

Janairo declared the meeting adjourned at 7:48 p.m.

Note: These minutes were prepared by Mark Opitz and are not final until they are formally approved 
at a subsequent meeting.

Page 2 of 25



RESOLUTION 2024-48 

To Approve a Conditional Use Permit for a Medical Clinic and Ambulatory 
Surgery Center in the Airport Road Business Park 

 
Whereas, The Middleton Plan Commission held a public hearing on an application for a conditional 
use permit for a medical clinic and ambulatory surgery center to be located in the Airport Road 
Business Park at 8124 Forsythia Street,  
 
Whereas, The Middleton Plan Commission directed staff to prepare Findings of Fact in support of 
granting the conditional use permit,  
 
Whereas, The Middleton Plan Commission approves the Findings of Fact dated September 26, 
2024, and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Middleton Plan Commission of the City of 
Middleton and Chair Sonnentag hereby approve the conditional use as originally proposed, 
adding the following conditions of approval: 
 

1. The physical development and operation of the conditional use shall conform, in all 
respects, to the Specific Implementation Plan (once approved by the Plan Commission), 
operational plan and phasing plan.  

2. All vehicles and equipment shall access the site only at approved locations identified in 
the Specific Implementation Plan and operations plan. 

3. If the Public Works Department or City Engineer determine that off-site improvements to 
the sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and/or water infrastructure are necessary to accommodate 
the conditional use, the cost of such improvements shall be borne by the landowner.   

4. The Zoning Administrator or designee may enter the premises of the operation in order to 
inspect those premises and to ascertain compliance with these conditions or to investigate 
an alleged violation. Zoning staff conducting inspections or investigations will comply 
with any applicable workplace safety rules or standards for the site. 

5. The owner shall post, in a prominent public place and in a form approved by the Zoning 
Administrator, a placard with the approved Conditional Use Permit number, the nature of 
the operation, name and contact information for the operator, and contact information for 
the City. 
1. The owner or operator shall keep a copy of the conditional use permit, including the 

list of all conditions, on the site, available for inspection to the public during business 
hours. 

2. Failure to comply with any imposed conditions, or to pay reasonable city costs of 
investigation or enforcement of sustained violations, may be grounds for revocation of 
the conditional use permit. The holder of a conditional use permit shall be given a 
reasonable opportunity to correct any violations prior to revocation. 

 
 
This resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the Middleton Plan Commission on the 8 th  
day of October 2024.  
  ATTEST: 

 
 
 

Kurt Sonnentag, Chair Lorie J. Burns, City Clerk 
 

Resolution #2024-48: To Approve a Conditional Use...Resolution #2024-48: To Approve a Conditional Use...

Page 1 of 36



PLAN COMMISSION
FINDINGS OF FACT

Application: Approval Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for 
Middleton Medical Collaborative

File: PC-2673

Project Location: 8124 Forsythia St. 

Prepared By: Abby Attoun, Planning & Community Development Director, 
aattoun@cityofmiddleton.us  608.821.8343

HGA is requesting a conditional use permit to develop a single-story outpatient health center on 
this approximately 1.77 acre lot. All services in the building will be provided on a daily outpatient 
basis with occasional stays lasting up to 24 hours. The General Development Plan (GDP) (as 
amended in March 2005) for the Airport Road Business Park lists medical clinics and ambulatory 
surgery centers as a conditional use in this Planned Unit Development (PUD). 

The Middleton Plan Commission conducted a hearing regarding this application on Tuesday, 
September 24, 2024. There was no testimony presented by the public. The applicants presented 
evidence to the Commission. The Commission made a motion to direct staff to prepare findings of 
fact in support of granting the conditional use permit which passed 5-0. 

CONDITIONAL USE FINDINGS

In its deliberations, the Middleton Plan Commission weighed evidence associated with the 
following standards and made the following recommendations in granting the request for a 
Conditional Use Permit. The Plan Commission sets out its findings in the bold text below each 
standard. 

1. Is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan. 
The Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use (FLU) map shows this site as Business Park, 
defined as medium- and large-scale retail, service, warehouse, and light industrial uses 
located near major roads, interchanges, and highways that serve the City as well as 
neighboring communities, with building heights from 1 to 3 stories. The proposed 
conditional use is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan, and the General 
Development Plan (GDP), which lists medical clinics and ambulatory surgery centers as a 
conditional use. This standard has been met. 

2. Would not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 
improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public 
health, safety, or general welfare.

Page 2 of 37

mailto:aattoun@cityofmiddleton.us


Findings of Fact – Middleton Medical Collaborative – September 26, 2024 Page 2

The proposed use will be harmonious with the neighborhood and will not result in 
negative environmental factors or result in the need for additional public improvements. 
The Plan Commission questioned the need for the proposed amount of parking (62 stalls) 
based on the expectation of serving 20 patients daily and having up to 35 staff members. 
The applicant presented evidence that the national standard of parking for this type of 
facility is 70 to 75 stalls and based on their experience in similar facilities, the 62 stalls 
are needed.  The City Engineer noted that the proposed use is reasonably consistent with 
the planned uses in the Airport Road Business Park based on trip generation, and 
recommends against requiring a traffic impact analysis for this project due to the low 
volume of traffic expected. This standard has been met. 

3. Maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts 
as related to the environs of the subject property.
The Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) will be required to meet all development 
standards, building setbacks, building standards, landscaping requirements, parking and 
loading area standards, outdoor storage, utility, and signage standards approved in the 
GDP. This standard has been met. 

4. The conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on, any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public or private agencies serving the subject property.
There are adequate services in this area to support the proposed use of the property. 
This standard has been met. 

5. The potential public benefits outweigh any potential adverse impacts of the proposed 
conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant's proposal and any 
requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts.
The public benefits of this facility - including but not limited to - expanded healthcare 
options, expanded employment options, and expanded tax base, outweigh any potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use. This standard has been met. 

Page 3 of 38



PLANNING STAFF REPORT  

2159 Allen Blvd.      File:   PC-2654 
 

To:  Plan Commission, for the Oct. 8 meeting 
Preparer:  Mark Opitz, City Planner   mopitz@cityofmiddleton.us  
Date:   October 3, 2024 

 

 

Requested Action:  City Approval of Certified Survey Map 
 

Location:   Pertains to one 7.1 acre parcel  

Applicant:   Vierbicher Associates (c/o Kevin Pape, PLS)  
999 Fourier Dr. #201, Madison      
 

Property Owner:  Calcio LLC (c/o Jon Kemman), 6117 CTH K, Waunakee  

Existing Zoning:  MR-L (Multi Family – Low Density) on eastern third of site 
MU-A (Mixed Use Avenue) on remainder of site to the west 
 

Existing Land Use: Vacant; formerly used as an athletic field 

Future LU Map: Established Neighborhood (eastern third) and Avenue Mixed Use (west) 

 
 

 
SUMMARY 

 
The applicant proposes to subdivide this 7.1 acre site—most recently used for playing soccer—into 
four lots. Lots 1 and 2 are 94,039 SF and 117,933 SF in size and are envisioned to support mixed-
use buildings oriented to Allen Blvd. (consistent with MU-A zoning), whereas Lots 3 and 4 are 
48,108 SF and 49,335 SF in size and are envisioning to support low-rise multi-family buildings 
oriented toward Middleton Beach Road (but having driveway access via Mendota Avenue).  The 
Plan Commission has up to forty-five (45) days after submittal of a certified survey map (until 
10/28/24 in this case) to approve, approve conditionally, or reject the CSM.  
 
Organization of this report: 
 
Conclusions and Recommendation    Page 2 
Background        Page 3 
Ordinance Provisions pertaining to this Application  Page 6 
Staff Analysis       Page 7 

  

Certified Survey Map - 4 Lot Subdivision, 2159 Allen Blvd....Certified Survey Map - 4 Lot Subdivision, 2159 Allen Blvd....Certified Survey Map - 4 Lot Subdivision, 2159 Allen Blvd....Certified Survey Map - 4 Lot Subdivision, 2159 Allen Blvd....

Page 1 of 289

mailto:mopitz@cityofmiddleton.us


Planning Staff Report – CSM for 2159 Allen Blvd.   Page 2 

 

 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
The applicant’s submittal appears to sufficiently adhere to the requirements of the city’s current 
subdivision ordinance. The key issues that arose during review by planning and engineering staff 
relate to site access along Allen Blvd., sanitary sewer service, and stormwater management (see 
Staff Analysis section).  All four lots created by this CSM are configured and sized in a way that 
would enable the land to be used in a manner that fully adheres to applicable provisions of the 
City’s zoning ordinance. Planning staff conclude that the CSM could be approved with the 
contingencies listed below. 
 
Potential Motion for the October 8 Plan Commission meeting: 
 
Approve the CSM contingent on the following: 

1. Indication of all easements necessary to facilitate circulation (access), stormwater 
management, and public utilities between/across all lots. 

2. The developer shall secure approval from the City of Madison to enable one or more 
sanitary sewer laterals to connect to the sewer facility in Marshall Park.  

3. No driveway access along Allen Blvd. except at the median opening across from Lakeview 
Boulevard, and no driveway access along Mendota Avenue within 175 feet of Allen Blvd.  

4. City engineer approval of the stormwater management plan for the entire development. 
5. The Plan Commission will determine the appropriate park fees during the Site Plan Review 

process for each lot. 
6. Resolution of all other city staff recommendations as indicated on the CSM submitted by 

the developer on 9/13/24. 
 
  

Page 2 of 2810



Planning Staff Report – CSM for 2159 Allen Blvd.   Page 3 

 

 

BACKGROUND 
 
Project Context 
 
The application involves one 7.1 acre parcel bounded by public streets on three sides. Elevation is 
is approximately 10 feet higher along the site’s western boundary compared to its eastern side.  
The following land uses surround the property: 

• To the North:  Lakeview East Conservancy Area, which is generally lower in elevation. 

• To the East: Single-Family Residences (typically 2-stories with a few 1- or 3-story houses) 
abutting Lake Mendota. Most have a detached garage along Middleton Beach Road. 

• To the South: Marshall Park, which is located in and owned by City of Madison. 

• To the West: Low-rise residences including a duplex and a four-plex, with single-family 
residences farther to the west. 

 
Existing Conditions 
 

 
 
 

Page 3 of 2811



Planning Staff Report – CSM for 2159 Allen Blvd.   Page 4 

 

 

 
 

 
  

Looking east across Middleton Beach Road 

Looking west across Allen Blvd. 

865 ft. 

855 ft. 

Page 4 of 2812



Planning Staff Report – CSM for 2159 Allen Blvd.   Page 5 

 

 

Comprehensive Plan – Future Land Use (FLU) Map 
 
The Future Land Use Map in the City’s Comprehensive Plan indicates Avenue Mixed Use category 
for the majority of the property, with Established Neighborhood on the eastern end of the parcel 
(fronting Middleton Beach Road). These land use categories are defined as follows: 
 

• Avenue Mixed Use: Wide range of indoor and outdoor retail, service, office, institutional, 
and residential uses outside of the downtown area. These are generally larger and/or more 
intensive than business in the Neighborhood Mixed Use category. 

• Established Neighborhood: For already developed neighborhoods in the city, preservation 
of urban neighborhood scale and character while providing a variety of housing options to 
meet the needs of a diverse population; building types could include single-family 
dwellings, accessory dwelling units (ADUs), homes with 2-3 dwelling units, and, where 
appropriate, single-family attached townhomes/condos and small-scale multifamily.  

 

 
  

Page 5 of 2813

https://www.cityofmiddleton.us/DocumentCenter/View/12239/FLU_Planning-Area_Adopted-2023-11-21


Planning Staff Report – CSM for 2159 Allen Blvd.   Page 6 

 

 

Zoning Map 

 

 
 

 
ORDINANCE PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO THIS APPLICATION 
 
Wis. Stats. 236.34 and Section 19.04(5) of the City’s  Subdivision Ordinance pertain to the 
preparation and review of certified survey maps. The Plan Commission has up to forty-five (45) 
days to approve, approve conditionally, or reject the certified survey map. In this case, the City 
must take action on the CSM by 10/28/24 because the CSM was submitted for review on 9/13/24. 
No streets or other features are being dedicated to the public, so the Common Council does not 
need to take any action at this time with respect to the CSM.  
 

  

SR-H 

TR-D 

PR CON 

MR-L 

MU-A 

SR-L 

MR-M City of 

Madison 

(park) 

Page 6 of 2814

https://library.municode.com/wi/middleton/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH19LADISURE


Planning Staff Report – CSM for 2159 Allen Blvd.   Page 7 

 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
The applicant’s submittal appears to sufficiently adhere to the requirements of the city’s current 
subdivision ordinance. Site access along Allen Blvd., sanitary sewer service, and stormwater 
management are the main issues that the City needs to ensure can be addressed as it considers 
whether to approve this CSM.   
 
Traffic: Each of the four lots would have frontage on at least one public street; however, Lot 2 
solely has street frontage along Allen Blvd., which is functionally classified as a principal arterial. 
The sole median break along Allen is at the Lakeview Boulevard intersection. Having a driveway 
nearby—even one that only provides right-in/right-out access—would almost certainly lead to 
drivers attempting to make U-turns or travel against northbound traffic unless the driveway is 
aligned with Lakeview Blvd. The City has observed this unsafe driver behavior in other similar 
situations. The City is limited in its ability to require the completion of a Traffic Impact Analysis (at 
developer expense) as part of the CSM review process. Therefore, unless a TIA is conducted, it is 
prudent to place access restrictions on the CSM based on the City’s Access Management Plan.  
 

Sanitary Sewer Service: The Public Works Department opposes any connection of sanitary sewer 
laterals to the main that serves lots along Middleton Beach Road due to the main’s physical 
condition and alignment. Any significant increase in discharge to this main could require the City 
to update the lift station located toward the northern end of that street.  Therefore, staff is 
recommending as a contingency of approval that the developer be required to obtain permission 
from the City of Madison (the landowner to the south) to extend sewer laterals into a sewer main 
serving Marshall Park. The CSM should establish the necessary easement(s) to enable this 
connection. 
 

Stormwater Management: At the CSM stage (prior to site plan review), the City needs to ensure 
that lots are not created in a way to would preclude the ability to sufficiently manage stormwater 
across all four lots. In late September, the developer submitted a comprehensive stormwater 
management plan pertaining to the entire 7.1 acre site. As staff review the SWMP for compliance 
with all applicable regulations, all four lots will be considered as a whole. Any development of the 
site will be required to release stormwater at a rate no greater than existing conditions for up to 
the 200-yr storm event.  Further, the City’s stormwater ordinance forces that existing condition to 
be a “pre-settlement” condition (not a turf grass playing field, but a pristine meadow).  Hence, 
peak discharge rates for a developed site will be lower than those that exist now. At no time 
during the development process can any of the lots be out of compliance, meaning temporary 
practices or the full build out of stormwater management practices will be required. This will also 
require a detailed phasing plan.  
 
Zoning Compliance:  On July 23, the Plan Commission reviewed a development concept consisting 
of two 3-story multifamily buildings fronting Middleton Beach Road, where Lots 3 and 4 are 
proposed. All four lots created by this CSM are configured and sized in a way that would enable 
the land to be used in a manner that fully adheres to applicable provisions of the City’s zoning 
ordinance. Lots 1 and 2 would have to comply with the density, intensity and bulk regulations 
pertaining to the Mixed Use-Avenue (MU-A) zoning district whereas Lots 3 and 4 are subject to the 
regulations pertaining to the Multi-Family Low Density (MR-L). 

Page 7 of 2815

https://www.cityofmiddleton.us/DocumentCenter/View/288/Access-Management?bidId=
https://meetings.cityofmiddleton.us/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=4938&doctype=1


Page 8 of 2816

Stauske
Line

Stauske
Line

Stauske
Callout
Label easement beneficiary & doc. no.

Stauske
Callout
Show Allen access restrictions, except at median opening across from Lakeview.Note:  This is closer than 350' from Mendota,  contrary to Fig. 2.01-5 of City's Access Mgmt. Plan, but may be reasonable.

Stauske
Line

Stauske
Line

Stauske
Callout
Show Mendota access restriction within 175' of Allen per Fig. 2.01-5 of City's Access Mgmt. Plan.



Page 9 of 2817

Stauske
Callout
Bearing is N3o32'06"E in description on sheet 5.Resolve inconsistency.



Page 10 of 2818

Stauske
Callout
Provide to City a copy of these two referenced recorded separate documents.

Stauske
Text Box
Include lots benefited by this easement.

Stauske
Text Box
May be advisable for sewer easement to be wider than 20' if sewer pipe will be deep.



Page 11 of 2819

Stauske
Callout
Ensure west edge of this easement extends to east line of Lots 1 and 2 (instead of being offset 0.5' east) if intended to benefit Lots 1 and 2.

Stauske
Text Box
Include lots benefited by this easement.



Page 12 of 2820



Page 13 of 2821



Page 14 of 2822



Page 15 of 2823



Page 16 of 2824



Page 17 of 2825



Page 18 of 2826



Page 19 of 2827



Page 20 of 2828



2159 Allen Boulevard

DISCLAIMER: The information shown on these maps has been obtained from various 
sources, and are of varying age, reliability and resolution. These maps are not intended to be 
used for navigation, nor are these maps an authoritative source of information about legal land 
ownership or public access. No warranty, expressed or implied, is made regarding accuracy, 
applicability for a particular use, completeness, or legality of the information depicted on this 
map. For more information, see the DNR Legal Notices web page: http://dnr.wi.gov/legal/3,960

0.1

1:NAD_1983_HARN_Wisconsin_TM

Miles0.10.06

Notes

Legend

0

Ponds/Open Water

Lake Class Areas

Riverine/ditch Class Areas

Wetland Class Areas

Wetland Class Points

Dammed pond

Excavated pond

Filled/drained wetland

Wetland too small to delineate

Filled excavated pond

Filled Points

Wetland Class Areas

Filled Areas

Wetland Identifications and 
Confirmations

Municipality

State Boundaries

County Boundaries

Major Roads

Interstate Highway

State Highway

US Highway

County and Local Roads

County HWY

Local Road

Railroads

Tribal Lands

Railroads

Rivers and Streams

Intermittent Streams

Lakes and Open water

Page 21 of 2829



PLANNING STAFF REPORT  

2159 Allen Blvd.      File:   PC-2654 
 

To:  Plan Commission, for the Oct. 8 meeting 
Preparer:  Mark Opitz, City Planner   mopitz@cityofmiddleton.us  
Date:   Revised October 8, 2024 

 

 

Requested Action:  City Approval of Certified Survey Map 
 

Location:   Pertains to one 7.1 acre parcel  

Applicant:   Vierbicher Associates (c/o Kevin Pape, PLS)  
999 Fourier Dr. #201, Madison      
 

Property Owner:  Calcio LLC (c/o Jon Kemman), 6117 CTH K, Waunakee  

Existing Zoning:  MR-L (Multi Family – Low Density) on eastern third of site 
MU-A (Mixed Use Avenue) on remainder of site to the west 
 

Existing Land Use: Vacant; formerly used as an athletic field 

Future LU Map: Established Neighborhood (eastern third) and Avenue Mixed Use (west) 

 
 

 
SUMMARY 

 
The applicant proposes to subdivide this 7.1 acre site—most recently used for playing soccer—into 
four lots. Lots 1 and 2 are 94,039 SF and 117,933 SF in size and are envisioned to support mixed-
use buildings oriented to Allen Blvd. (consistent with MU-A zoning), whereas Lots 3 and 4 are 
48,108 SF and 49,335 SF in size and are envisioning to support low-rise multi-family buildings 
oriented toward Middleton Beach Road (but having driveway access via Mendota Avenue).  The 
Plan Commission has up to forty-five (45) days after submittal of a certified survey map (until 
10/28/24 in this case) to approve, approve conditionally, or reject the CSM.  
 
Organization of this report: 
 
Conclusions and Recommendation    Page 2 
Background        Page 3 
Ordinance Provisions pertaining to this Application  Page 6 
Staff Analysis       Page 7 

  

Page 22 of 2830

mailto:mopitz@cityofmiddleton.us


Planning Staff Report – CSM for 2159 Allen Blvd.   Page 2 

 

 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
The applicant’s submittal appears to sufficiently adhere to the requirements of the city’s current 
subdivision ordinance. The key issues that arose during review by planning and engineering staff 
relate to site access along Allen Blvd., sanitary sewer service, and stormwater management (see 
Staff Analysis section).  All four lots created by this CSM are configured and sized in a way that 
would enable the land to be used in a manner that fully adheres to applicable provisions of the 
City’s zoning ordinance. Planning staff conclude that the CSM could be approved with the 
contingencies listed below. 
 
Potential Motion for the October 8 Plan Commission meeting: 
 
Approve the CSM contingent on the following: 

1. Indication of all easements necessary to facilitate circulation (access), stormwater 
management, and public utilities between/across all lots. 

2. The developer shall secure approval from the City of Madison to enable one or more 
sanitary sewer laterals to connect to the sewer facility in Marshall Park.  
The developer shall pay for City studies of water and sanitary sewer infrastructure needed 
to ensure satisfactory fire & domestic water flows, and satisfactory water pressure to 
highest proposed fixtures, as well as sufficient downstream sanitary sewer capacity for safe 
and reliable sewage conveyance from each lot of the planned development.  The developer 
shall deposit $25,000 to be held in escrow to fund the studies which shall be replenished or 
increased if the cost is estimated to exceed that amount. Pending the outcome of this study, 
the developer shall secure approvals, and easements if necessary, and shall construct public 
and private utility improvements needed to serve the planned development. 

3. No driveway access along Allen Blvd. except at the median opening across from Lakeview 
Boulevard, and no driveway access along Mendota Avenue within 175 feet of Allen Blvd.  

4. City engineer approval of the stormwater management plan, and the stormwater 
management agreement recorded for all four lots.   

5. The Plan Commission will determine the appropriate park fees during the Site Plan Review 
process for each lot. 

6. Resolution of all other city staff recommendations as indicated on the CSM submitted by 
the developer on 9/13/24. 

 
  

Page 23 of 2831



Planning Staff Report – CSM for 2159 Allen Blvd.   Page 3 

 

 

BACKGROUND 
 
Project Context 
 
The application involves one 7.1 acre parcel bounded by public streets on three sides. Elevation is 
is approximately 10 feet higher along the site’s western boundary compared to its eastern side.  
The following land uses surround the property: 

• To the North:  Lakeview East Conservancy Area, which is generally lower in elevation. 

• To the East: Single-Family Residences (typically 2-stories with a few 1- or 3-story houses) 
abutting Lake Mendota. Most have a detached garage along Middleton Beach Road. 

• To the South: Marshall Park, which is located in and owned by City of Madison. 

• To the West: Low-rise residences including a duplex and a four-plex, with single-family 
residences farther to the west. 

 
Existing Conditions 
 

 
 
 

Page 24 of 2832



Planning Staff Report – CSM for 2159 Allen Blvd.   Page 4 

 

 

 
 

 
  

Looking east across Middleton Beach Road 

Looking west across Allen Blvd. 

865 ft. 

855 ft. 

Page 25 of 2833



Planning Staff Report – CSM for 2159 Allen Blvd.   Page 5 

 

 

Comprehensive Plan – Future Land Use (FLU) Map 
 
The Future Land Use Map in the City’s Comprehensive Plan indicates Avenue Mixed Use category 
for the majority of the property, with Established Neighborhood on the eastern end of the parcel 
(fronting Middleton Beach Road). These land use categories are defined as follows: 
 

• Avenue Mixed Use: Wide range of indoor and outdoor retail, service, office, institutional, 
and residential uses outside of the downtown area. These are generally larger and/or more 
intensive than business in the Neighborhood Mixed Use category. 

• Established Neighborhood: For already developed neighborhoods in the city, preservation 
of urban neighborhood scale and character while providing a variety of housing options to 
meet the needs of a diverse population; building types could include single-family 
dwellings, accessory dwelling units (ADUs), homes with 2-3 dwelling units, and, where 
appropriate, single-family attached townhomes/condos and small-scale multifamily.  

 

 
  

Page 26 of 2834

https://www.cityofmiddleton.us/DocumentCenter/View/12239/FLU_Planning-Area_Adopted-2023-11-21


Planning Staff Report – CSM for 2159 Allen Blvd.   Page 6 

 

 

Zoning Map 

 

 
 

 
ORDINANCE PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO THIS APPLICATION 
 
Wis. Stats. 236.34 and Section 19.04(5) of the City’s  Subdivision Ordinance pertain to the 
preparation and review of certified survey maps. The Plan Commission has up to forty-five (45) 
days to approve, approve conditionally, or reject the certified survey map. In this case, the City 
must take action on the CSM by 10/28/24 because the CSM was submitted for review on 9/13/24. 
No streets or other features are being dedicated to the public, so the Common Council does not 
need to take any action at this time with respect to the CSM.  
 

  

SR-H 

TR-D 

PR CON 

MR-L 

MU-A 

SR-L 

MR-M City of 

Madison 

(park) 

Page 27 of 2835

https://library.municode.com/wi/middleton/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=CH19LADISURE


Planning Staff Report – CSM for 2159 Allen Blvd.   Page 7 

 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
The applicant’s submittal appears to sufficiently adhere to the requirements of the city’s current 
subdivision ordinance. Site access along Allen Blvd., sanitary sewer service, and stormwater 
management are the main issues that the City needs to ensure can be addressed as it considers 
whether to approve this CSM.   
 
Traffic: Each of the four lots would have frontage on at least one public street; however, Lot 2 
solely has street frontage along Allen Blvd., which is functionally classified as a principal arterial. 
The sole median break along Allen is at the Lakeview Boulevard intersection. Having a driveway 
nearby—even one that only provides right-in/right-out access—would almost certainly lead to 
drivers attempting to make U-turns or travel against northbound traffic unless the driveway is 
aligned with Lakeview Blvd. The City has observed this unsafe driver behavior in other similar 
situations. The City is limited in its ability to require the completion of a Traffic Impact Analysis (at 
developer expense) as part of the CSM review process. Therefore, unless a TIA is conducted, it is 
prudent to place access restrictions on the CSM based on the City’s Access Management Plan.  
 

Sanitary Sewer Service: The Public Works Department opposes any connection of sanitary sewer 
laterals to the main that serves lots along Middleton Beach Road due to the main’s physical 
condition and alignment. Any significant increase in discharge to this main could require the City 
to update the lift station located toward the northern end of that street.  Therefore, staff is 
recommending as a contingency of approval that the developer be required to obtain permission 
from the City of Madison (the landowner to the south) to extend sewer laterals into a sewer main 
serving Marshall Park. The CSM should establish the necessary easement(s) to enable this 
connection. 
 

Stormwater Management: At the CSM stage (prior to site plan review), the City needs to ensure 
that lots are not created in a way to would preclude the ability to sufficiently manage stormwater 
across all four lots. In late September, the developer submitted a comprehensive stormwater 
management plan pertaining to the entire 7.1 acre site. As staff review the SWMP for compliance 
with all applicable regulations, all four lots will be considered as a whole. Any development of the 
site will be required to release stormwater at a rate no greater than existing conditions for up to 
the 200-yr storm event.  Further, the City’s stormwater ordinance forces that existing condition to 
be a “pre-settlement” condition (not a turf grass playing field, but a pristine meadow).  Hence, 
peak discharge rates for a developed site will be lower than those that exist now. At no time 
during the development process can any of the lots be out of compliance, meaning temporary 
practices or the full build out of stormwater management practices will be required. This will also 
require a detailed phasing plan.  
 
Zoning Compliance:  On July 23, the Plan Commission reviewed a development concept consisting 
of two 3-story multifamily buildings fronting Middleton Beach Road, where Lots 3 and 4 are 
proposed. All four lots created by this CSM are configured and sized in a way that would enable 
the land to be used in a manner that fully adheres to applicable provisions of the City’s zoning 
ordinance. Lots 1 and 2 would have to comply with the density, intensity and bulk regulations 
pertaining to the Mixed Use-Avenue (MU-A) zoning district whereas Lots 3 and 4 are subject to the 
regulations pertaining to the Multi-Family Low Density (MR-L). 

Page 28 of 2836

https://www.cityofmiddleton.us/DocumentCenter/View/288/Access-Management?bidId=
https://meetings.cityofmiddleton.us/Meetings/ViewMeeting?id=4938&doctype=1


120 East Lakeside Street • Madison, Wisconsin 53715 • 608.255.3988 • 608.255.0814 Fax 

247 Freshwater Way, Suite 530 • Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53204 • 414.988.8631 

www.vandewalle.com 

Shaping places, shaping change 

September 11, 2024 

Abby Attoun  

Department of Planning & Community Development 

7426 Hubbard Avenue 

Middleton, WI  53562 

RE: Ziegler Farm  

Rezoning Request 

Dear Abby, 

Attached please find a copy of the Veridian Homes request to rezone the Ziegler Farm on High 

Road to Single Family Residential – Medium Density (SR-M) and Single Family Residential – High 

Density (SR-H) for a new single family residential neighborhood featuring a range of lot sizes and 

price points. 

We look forward to working with the City on the review and implementation of this 

neighborhood. 

Sincerely, 

Brian Munson 

Principal 

Referral to Committees - Preliminary Plat and Site Plan...Referral to Committees - Preliminary Plat and Site Plan...Referral to Committees - Preliminary Plat and Site Plan...

Page 1 of 3337



 

09/11/24   Page 2  

Applicant 

VH Acquisitions, LLC. 

6801 South Town Drive 

Madison, WI 53713 

Matt Brink 

mbrink@veridianhome.com 

Phone: 608.226.3038 

Property Owner 

Ziegler Living Trust, Leonard A & Ruth E 

637 Spruce Circle 

Verona, WI 53593 

Greg Ziegler 

Phone:   608.845.991 

Design Team 

 

Engineering:  

Wyser Engineering 

300 E. Front St. 

Mount Horeb, WI 53572 

Phone: 608.437.1862  

     Wade Wyse  

     wade.wyse@wyserengineering.com  

 

Planning:  

Vandewalle and Associates 

120 East Lakeside Street  

Madison, Wisconsin 53715  

Phone: 608.255.3988  

     Brian Munson 

     bmunson@vandewalle.com 

 

Existing Conditions 

Existing Site: The site includes six parcels spanning both sides of High Road, 

located between existing and emerging neighborhoods as a 

missing link in the neighborhood fabric. The site is 

predominately used for agricultural purposes with a farmstead 

located along the western side of High Road.  The remainder of 

the site consists of wetlands along Graber Pond as well as a 

creek/wetland corridor east of High Road. 

 

Existing Zoning:   AG 

 

Parcels:    0808-354-9740-8 4819 High Road 

    0708-021-8050-9 4819 High Road 

    0808-363-9150-1 

    0808-363-9710-3 

    0708-012-8500-5 

    0708-012-8000-0 

 

Lot Area:   85.32 acres 

 

Page 2 of 3338



 

09/11/24   Page 3  

Comprehensive Plan:  Established Neighborhood 

    Planned Neighborhood 

    Environmental Corridor 

 

Existing Site Photos: 

Misty Valley Drive (view south)   Caneel Trail (view east) 

  
 

High Road (view north)   High Road (view south) 

  
 
Whittlesey Road (view north)   Pheasant Branch Road (view north) 

  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 3339



 

09/11/24   Page 4  

 

Caneel Conservancy Bike Path   East of High Road 

  
 

West of High Road   Farmstead 

  
 
Graber Pond Frontage   Graber Road (view east) 

  
 

 

 

  

Page 4 of 3340



 

09/11/24   Page 5  

Proposal 
Requested Zoning:   

Single Family Residential – Medium Density (SR-M)  

Single Family Residential – High Density (SR-H) 

Parks and Recreation (PR) 

Conservancy (CON) 

 

Official Map:    

Amend official map to reflect adopted Comprehensive Plan 

 

Urban Service Area Amendment/Annexation:  

Separate application for annexation of the property and an amendment to the Urban Service 

Area have been filed in support of the project. 

 

Project Summary  
The Ziegler Farm Neighborhood reflects the adopted Comprehensive Plan recommendation for 

the parcel which calls for a planned residential neighborhood.   

 

“Middleton will establish a land use pattern that promotes compact development, 

protection of natural resources, a range of housing options, mobility, and economic 

growth in order to maintain an exceptional quality of life.” 

  -Land Use Introduction, 2023 Comprehensive Plan 

 

Built in this framework, the neighborhood delivers a range of single-family homes with floor 

plans, formats, & price points that compliments the adjoining mixed residential neighborhoods 

by offering additional single family housing choices and transitioning from the higher density 

housing to the existing neighborhoods.  The project is designed to meet the requirements of 

standard zoning districts and is not requesting any exceptions to the adopted plan or code.   

 

The neighborhood design works with the surrounding character and on-site conditions to 

facilitate the creation of a new vibrant residential addition to Middleton that integrates the 

following elements: 

·  Respect and enhance the natural features of Graber Pond 

·  Extend the street grid where feasible 

·  Extend regional trail network 

·  Preserving and the existing wetlands corridor and maintain appropriate buffers 

·  Integrating careful stormwater management meeting the 100% stay on 

requirements 

·  Add new parks & open space corridors 

 

Proposed Use:  

Single family homes within the project will include both carriage lane accessed, and street 

accessed configuration that can accommodate a wide range of house types, architectural 

treatments, landscaping, floor plans and price points. This will create an integrated and diverse 

neighborhood that blends easily into the surrounding neighborhoods. Price points within the 

neighborhood will range from entry level/first time home buyer to move up and luxury housing 

options. 

Page 5 of 3341



 

09/11/24   Page 6  

Alley Accessed Single Family: 17 

Street Accessed Single Family: 156 

 Total   173 

     

Stormwater Management 

Parks & Open Space   

 

Carriage Lane Accessed Single Family 

Carriage lane homes enhance the variety of housing and neighborhood character through the 

use of single-family home sites served by alleys.  These homes are designed with integrated 

architecture and reduced setbacks which create an unbroken front façade of houses without 

garages that emphasize a human-based scale and texture in which the pedestrian and front 

porches become the focus. 

 

Conventional Single Family 

Conventional single family homes within the neighborhood will span from entry level/first time 

homebuyer, to luxury, and downsizer opportunities. These homes are designed with 

garage/home proportions and garage setbacks that focus the architecture on the front 

door/front façade of the home while downplaying the garage components to create a more 

pedestrian oriented streetscape. Conventional street access single family form a majority of the 

houses within the neighborhood due to grade constraints.   

 

Parks & Open Space 

Parks & open space components within the neighborhood are designed to build upon the 

environmental framework of the site offering trail extensions & park space while preserving and 

buffering the Graber Pond area and wetland corridors with 75’ buffers and carefully placed 

stormwater management. 

 

Parks: Park space in the western portion of the site creates additional 

buffering to Graber Pond.  The eastern park space offers recreational 

space adjacent the greater wetland and trail corridor. 

 

 Park dedication required: 5.76 acres (1,450 sq. ft./unit) 

 Park dedicated:    

  Graber Pond Area: 2.15 acres 

  East Trail Corridor: 1.6 acres 

  East Park Space: 3.6 acres 

   Total:  7.28 acres 

 

 Note: dedication excludes stormwater management and wetlands 

 

Trails: Trails utilize the 75’ wetland buffer to create a new east-west corridor 

connection along the larger environmental corridors.  This system is 

connected to the High Road frontage, through the utilization of a short 

boardwalk section, filling the missing links of the “Misty Valley Trail” an 

off-street path from Graber Pond through the Caneel Corner 

Conservancy and across the site to the west segment of the Pheasant 

Branch Trail.  The project also proposes the extension of the existing 

Page 6 of 3342



 

09/11/24   Page 7  

trail from the north of Whittlesey Road with a boardwalk section, co-

located with the required utilities to minimize wetland impacts. 

 

Wetlands: The design of the neighborhood seeks to preserve the existing wetlands 

with minimal disturbances and 75’ buffers.  The resulting preserved 

wetlands offer a publicly dedicated environmental corridor between 

Graber Pond and Pheasant Branch Conservancy. 

 

Phasing 

The project will be built in four phases starting west of High Road over the course of the next 5-6 

years. 

  

Page 7 of 3343



 

09/11/24   Page 8  

Legal Description: 

UNPLATTED LANDS, BEING PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, 

AND PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1 

TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST 

QUARTER OF SECTION 2 TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 

QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 35 TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, 

PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER , AND PART OF THE 

SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36 TOWN 08 NORTH, RANGE 

08 EAST, LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF MIDDLETON & THE TOWN OF SPRINGFIELD, DANE COUNTY, 

WISCONSIN, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE WEST QUARTER CORNER OF AFORESAID SECTION 36, THENCE, ALONG 

THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 36, SOUTH 00 DEGREES 34 

MINUTES 03 SECONDS EAST, 1495.76 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF A 

SOUTH LINE OF REDTAIL RIDGE, RECORDED IN VOLUME 61-096B OF PLATS ON PAGES 571-575, 

AS DOCUMENT NO. 5928058, ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE, ALONG SAID 

EXTENSION AND THEN SAID SOUTH LINE, NORTH 89 DEGREES 03 MINUTES 24 SECONDS EAST, 

1333.96 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE 

SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF AFORESAID SECTION 36, AND A CORNER OF OUTLOT 7, SAID REDTAIL 

RIDGE; THENCE, ALONG SAID WEST LINE AND A WEST LINE OF SAID OUTLOT 7, SOUTH 00 

DEGREES 39 MINUTES 42 SECOND EAST, 780.45 FEET TO A SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 

OUTLOT 7; THENCE, ALONG A SOUTH LINE OF SAID OUTLOT 7, NORTH 88 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 

40 SECOND EAST, 1335.27 FEET  TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 

OF AFORESAID SECTION 36; THENCE, ALONG SAID EAST LINE, SOUTH 00 DEGREES, 45 MINUTES, 

22 SECONDS EAST, 371.51 FEET TO THE SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 36; 

THENCE, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF AFORESAID SECTION 1, 

SOUTH 00 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 01 SECONDS WEST, 165.02 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE 

EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF PHEASANT BRANCH RIDGE, RECORDED IN 

VOLUME 57-088B OF PLATS ON PAGES 341-343 AS DOCUMENT NO. 2920713; THENCE, ALONG 

SAID EXTENSION AND THEN SAID NORTH LINE, SOUTH 88 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 28 SECONDS 

WEST, 2671.17 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 

AFORESAID SECTION 2; THENCE, ALONG SAID EAST LINE, SOUTH 00 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 20 

SECONDS EAST, 164.71 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF SPRING HILL 

ESTATES, RECORDED IN VOLUME 56-14B ON PAGES 36-37, AS DOCUMENT NO. 1981249; 

THENCE, ALONG SAID EXTENSION AND THEN SAID NORTH LINE, SOUTH 88 DEGREES 58 

MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST, 1325.12 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 

QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2 AND THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF 

SAID SPRING HILL ESTATES; THENCE, ALONG SAID WEST LINE, NORTH 00 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 

22 SECONDS WEST, 330.13 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF TH SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF 

THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF AFORESAID SECTION 35; THENCE, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID 

SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER, NORTH 00 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 27 

SECONDS WEST, 99.00 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 34 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 17 SECONDS EAST, 

568.23 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 00 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 26 SECONDS EAST, 135.67 FEET TO A 

POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF MISTY VALLEY, RECORDED IN VOLUME 59-040B OF PLATS ON 

PAGES 198-201 AS DOCUMENT NO. 4360973; THENCE, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID MISTY 

VALLEY, NORTH 88 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 57 SECONDS EAST, 993.59 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 

EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF AFORESAID SECTION 35; THENCE, ALONG SAID EAST 

Page 8 of 3344



 

09/11/24   Page 9  

LINE, NORTH 00 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST 459.65 FEET, BACK TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

 

SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 3,716,520 SQUARE FEET OR 85.32 ACRES INCLUDING RIGHT-OF-WAY 

SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 3,621,389 SQUARE FEED OR 83.14 ACRES EXCLUDING RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 

Page 9 of 3345



Page 10 of 3346



Page 11 of 3347



Wetlands

Wetlands

Stormwater

Stormwater

Storm-
water

Stormwater

Z
IE

G
LE

R
 F

A
R

M
 P

R
O

P
E
R

TY
M

id
d

le
to

n
, 

W
is

c
o

n
s
in

IL
LU

S
TR

A
TI

V
E

P
LA

N

© 2024

VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.

Revised: 9.9.2024 0' 150' 300'

LOT TYPE

Single Family Detached

UNITS %

4

10

3

2%

2%

6%

Alley - 45

Alley - 37

Alley - 31

22

92

13%

53%

31 18%

11 6%

Single Fam - 65

Single Fam - 59

Single Fam - 51

Single Fam - 69

100%173TOTAL RESIDENTIAL

Alley Single Family Detached

Wetlands

StormwatermwaterStormwat

Stormwater

m-Storm-Storm-
rwatewater

Revised: 9.9.2024.2 0'0'0' 150'0'0' 300'30

4

10

Alley - 45

Alley - 37

173TOTAL RESIDENTIAL

Wetlands

StormwaterStor

Stor er

H
ig

h
 R

d

P
h

ea
sa

n
t 

B
ra

n
ch

 R
d

Belle
 Fontaine Blvd

Caneel Trail

Spring Hill Dr

Graber Rd

Algonquin Dr

W
hittlesey Rd

M
anito

Ct

Ly
n

n
 S

t

Roadway ‘D’

W
a

xw
in

g
 W

y

Hooded Merganser Dr

R
o

a
d

w
a

y 
‘E

’

M
is

ty
 V

al
le

y 
D

r

Roadway ‘A’

Roadway ‘B’

Roadway ‘C’

Graber Rd

Thrasher Street

H
ig

h
 R

d

P
h

ea
sa

n
t 

B
ra

n
ch

 R
d

Belle
 Fontaine Blvd

Caneel Trail

Spring Hill Dr

Graber Rd

Algonquin Dr

W
hittlesey Rd

M
anito

Ct

Ly
n

n
 S

t

M
isty

Valley Dr

Roadway ‘D’

W
a

xw
in

g
 W

y

Hooded Merganser Dr

R
o

a
d

w
a

y 
‘E

’

M
is

ty
 V

al
le

y 
D

r

Roadway ‘A’

Roadway ‘B’

Roadway ‘C’

Graber Rd

Thrasher Street

Graber PondGraber Pond

P
h

e
a

sa
n

t 
B

ra
n

ch

C
o

n
se

rv
a

n
cy

Tra
il N

etw
o

rk

Boardwalk

Page 12 of 3348



Wetlands

Wetlands

Stormwater

Stormwater

Storm-
water

Stormwater

Z
IE

G
LE

R
 F

A
R

M
 P

R
O

P
E
R

TY
M

id
d

le
to

n
, 

W
is

c
o

n
s
in

Z
O

N
IN

G
P

LA
N

© 2024

VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.

Revised: 9.9.2024 0' 150' 300'

LOT TYPE

Single Family Detached

UNITS %

4

10

3

2%

2%

6%

Alley - 45

Alley - 37

Alley - 31

22

92

13%

53%

31 18%

11 6%

Single Fam - 65

Single Fam - 59

Single Fam - 51

Single Fam - 69

100%173TOTAL RESIDENTIAL

Alley Single Family Detached

H
ig

h
 R

d

P
h

ea
sa

n
t 

B
ra

n
ch

 R
d

Belle
 Fontaine Blvd

Caneel Trail

Spring Hill Dr

Graber Rd

Alg n Dr

W
hitt

Rd

M
anit

Ly
n

n
 S

t

W
a

xw
in

g
 W

y

M
is

ty
 V

al
le

y 
D

r Roadway ‘B’
H

ig
h

 R
d

P
h

ea
sa

n
t 

B
ra

n
ch

 R
d

Belle
 Fontaine Blvd

Caneel Trail

Spring Hill Dr

Graber Rd

Alg n Dr

W
hitt

Rd

M
anit

Ly
n

n
 S

t

lley Dr

W
a

xw
in

g
 W

y

M
is

ty
 V

al
le

y 
D

r Roadway ‘B’

Graber PondGraber Pond

P
h

e
a

sa
n

t 
B

ra
n

ch

C
o

n
se

rv
a

n
cy

Tra
il N

etw
o

rk

Boardwalk

© 2024

VAVV NDDDDEEWWALLEALLEALLEWWWW &&&
ASSOOCIATESS INC.INC.

Revised: 9.9.2024.2Revised: 9.9.2024 0'0' 150'0'0'150'0'0'150' 300'30300'30300'

LOT TYPE

Single Family Detached

UNITS %

3

2%

2%

6%

Alley - 31

22

92

13%

53%

31 18%

11 6%

Single Fam - 65

Single Fam - 59

Single Fam - 51

Single Fam - 69

100%

Alley Single Family Detached

Wetlands

StormwatermwaterStormwat

Stormwater

m-Storm-Storm-
rwatewater

Revised: 9.9.2024.2 0'0'0' 150'0'0' 300'30

4

10

Alley - 45

Alley - 37

173TOTAL RESIDENTIAL

Wetlands

StormwaterStor

Stor er

Belle
 Fontaine Blvd

Algg n Dr

W
hhitt

Rd

M
aa

it

H
ig

h
H

ig
h

H
ig

h
 R

d
H

ig
h

g
h

 R
g

h
 R

d
 R

ddd
H

ig
h

 R
d

P
h

ea
sa

n
t 

B
ra

n
ch

 R
d

ea
sa

n
t 

B
ra

n
ch

 R
d

P
h

ea
sa

n
t 

B
ra

n
ch

 R
d

Belle
 Fontaine Blvd

Belle
 Fontaine Blvd

ntaine Blvd

Belle
 Fontaine Blvd

Caneel TraililCaneel Trail

Spring Hill DrSpring HilSpring Hill Dr

Graber R
GrGraber Rd
Graber Rd

AAAAlllglgggggl nn DDDDrrr

WWW
hh

W
hhhhhhhh

WW
iiiiitttttttttttt

RRRRddddd

MMMM
aaaannnniiiiittttt

Ly
n

n
 S

t
Ly

n
n

 S
t

llllllleeeeyyyeee DDDrrr

xw
in

W
a

xw
in

xw
in

W
a

W
a

W
a

W
a

W
a

W
a

W
a

W
a

W
a

W
a

W
a

xwxw
in

xwxwxwxw
inin

g
 

g
 

inin
W

a
W

a
xw

W
a

xwxwxwxw
in

g
 W

y
g

 W
y

g
 W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
g

 
g

 
in

g
 

g
 

g
 

g
 W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

y
W

a
xw

in
g

 W
y

M
is

t
M

is
t

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
i

M
is

t
M

is
tststststst
y 

st
y 

Va
lle

y

st
y 

Va
y 

Va
lle

y

y 
Va

lle
y

st
y 

VaVa
ll

Va
ll

Va
lle

y 
D

r
ey

 D D
ey

 D D
rrrrrrr

lle
y 

D
r

 D
r

 D
r

M
is

ty
 V

al
le

y 
D

r way ‘B’way y RoRoadad ‘BadRoRoadRoadRoadadadRoadadadRoadRoadRoadRo ‘B‘B’Roadway ‘B’

dGraber PondGraber PondGraber Pond

P
h

e
a

sa
n

t 
B

ra
n

ch
P

h
e

a
sa

n
t 

B
ra

n
ch

C
o

n
se

rv
a

n
cy

C
o

n
se

rv
a

n
cy

TTTrrTTTT aarrrr
iill NN

eettww
oo

wwww
rrkk

BoardwalkBoardwalk

SR-H
SR-M

SR-M

CON

PR

PR

CON

CON

CON

CON

PR

CON

PR

SR-M  Single Family Residential - Medium

SR-H  Single Family Residential - High

PR  Parks & Recreation

CON  Conservancy

Page 13 of 3349



Wetlands

Wetlands

Stormwater

Stormwater

Storm-
water

Stormwater

Z
IE

G
LE

R
 F

A
R

M
 P

R
O

P
E
R

TY
M

id
d

le
to

n
, 

W
is

c
o

n
s
in

P
H

A
S
IN

G
P

LA
N

© 2024

VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCIATES INC.

Revised: 9.9.2024 0' 150' 300'

LOT TYPE

Single Family Detached

UNITS %

4

10

3

2%

2%

6%

Alley - 45

Alley - 37

Alley - 31

22

92

13%

53%

31 18%

11 6%

Single Fam - 65

Single Fam - 59

Single Fam - 51

Single Fam - 69

100%173TOTAL RESIDENTIAL

Alley Single Family Detached

Wetlands

StormwatermwaterStormwat

Stormwater

m-Storm-Storm-
rwatewater

Revised: 9.9.2024.2 0'0'0' 150'0'0' 300'30

4

10

Alley - 45

Alley - 37

173TOTAL RESIDENTIAL

Wetlands

StormwaterStor

Stor er

H
ig

h
 R

d

P
h

ea
sa

n
t 

B
ra

n
ch

 R
d

Belle
 Fontaine Blvd

Caneel Trail

Spring Hill Dr

Graber Rd

Algonquin Dr

W
hittlesey Rd

M
anito

Ct

Ly
n

n
 S

t

Roadway ‘D’

W
a

xw
in

g
 W

y

Hooded Merganser Dr

R
o

a
d

w
a

y 
‘E

’

M
is

ty
 V

al
le

y 
D

r

Roadway ‘A’

Roadway ‘B’

Roadway ‘C’

Graber Rd

Thrasher Street

H
ig

h
 R

d

P
h

ea
sa

n
t 

B
ra

n
ch

 R
d

Belle
 Fontaine Blvd

Caneel Trail

Spring Hill Dr

Graber Rd

Algonquin Dr

W
hittlesey Rd

M
anito

Ct

Ly
n

n
 S

t

M
isty

Valley Dr

Roadway ‘D’

W
a

xw
in

g
 W

y

Hooded Merganser Dr

R
o

a
d

w
a

y 
‘E

’

M
is

ty
 V

al
le

y 
D

r

Roadway ‘A’

Roadway ‘B’

Roadway ‘C’

Graber Rd

Thrasher Street

Graber PondGraber Pond

P
h

e
a

sa
n

t 
B

ra
n

ch

C
o

n
se

rv
a

n
cy

Tra
il N

etw
o

rk

Boardwalk

3

4

2

1

Page 14 of 3350



LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 4

LOT 3

LOT 5 LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9 LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 12

LOT 13

OUTLOT 5

LOT 14LOT 15LOT 16LOT 17LOT 18LOT 19LOT 20

LOT 21

LOT 22

LOT 23
LOT 24 LOT 25 LOT 26 LOT 27 LOT 28 LOT 29 LOT 30 LOT 31 LOT 32

LOT 33

LO
T 

34
LO

T 
55

LOT 35LOT 36LOT 37LOT 38LOT 39LOT 40LOT 41LOT 42LOT 43LOT 44

LOT 45 LOT 46 LOT 47 LOT 48 LOT 49 LOT 50 LOT 51 LOT 52 LOT 53

LO
T 

54 LOT 56

OUTLOT 4

LOT 57LOT 58LOT 59LOT 60LOT 61LOT 62LOT 63LOT 64
LOT 65LOT 66 LOT 67

LOT 68

LOT 69

LOT 70

LOT 71

LOT 72

LOT 73

LOT 74

LOT 75

LOT 76

LOT 77

LOT 78

LOT 79

LOT 80

LOT 81

LOT 82

LOT 83

OUTLOT 2

OUTLOT 13

OUTLOT 6

LO
T 

84

LO
T 

85

LO
T 

86

LO
T 

87

LO
T 

88

LO
T 

89

LO
T 

90

LO
T 

91

LOT 92

LO
T 

17
2

LOT 93 LOT 94 LOT 95 LOT 96 LOT 97 LOT 98 LOT 99 LOT 100
LOT 101

LOT 102

LOT 103

LOT 104

LOT 105

LOT 106

LOT 107

LOT 108
LOT 109

LOT 110
LOT 111

LOT 112
LOT 113

LOT 114

LOT 115

LOT 116

LOT 117

LOT 118

LOT 119

LOT 120

LOT 121LOT 122

LOT 123

LOT 124

LOT 125

LOT 126

LOT 127

LOT 128

LOT 129

LOT 130

LOT 131

LOT 132

LOT 133

LOT 134

LOT 135LOT 136
LOT 137

OUTLOT 9

LOT 138

LOT 140

LOT 141

LOT 142

LOT 143LOT 144

LOT 145

LOT 146

LOT 147

LOT 148

LOT 149

LOT 150

LOT 152

LOT 153

LOT 154

LOT 151

OUTLOT 8
LOT 155

LOT 157

LOT 158

LOT 159

LOT 160

LOT 161

LOT 162

LOT 163

LOT 164

LOT 165

LOT 166

LOT 167

LOT 168

LOT 169

LOT 170

LOT 171

LO
T 

17
3

LOT 139

LOT 156

OUTLOT 13

OUTLOT 10
OUTLOT 11

OUTLOT 3

OUTLOT 1

OUTLOT 7

OUTLOT 12

OUTLOT 12

OUTLOT 13

OUTLOT 14

OUTLOT 14

OUTLOT 1

SUBDIVIDER:
VH ACQUISITIONS, LLC
6801 SOUTH TOWN DRIVE
MADISON, WI  53715

SURVEYOR/ENGINEER/PLANNER:
WYSER ENGINEERING
312 EAST MAIN STREET
MOUNT HOREB, WI 53572
www.wyserengineering.com

OWNER:
LEONARD A. AND RUTH E. ZIEGLER LIVING TRUST
637 SPRUCE CIRCLE
VERONA, WI  53593

DRIVE

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 'E

'

W
A

X
W

IN
G

  W
A

Y

H
O

O
D

ED

M
ERGANSER

ROADWAY 'D'

ROADWAY 'A'

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 'B

'

ROADWAY 'C'

GRABER   ROAD

VA
LL

EY

D
RI

V
E

M
IS

TY

GRABER   ROAD

CANEEL   TRAIL

M
IS

TY
  V

A
LL

EY
  D

R
IV

E

H
IG

H
  R

O
A

D

PH
EA

SA
N

T 
 B

R
A

N
C

H
  R

O
A

D

SE 1/4, SECTION 35 - T8N- R8E

LOCATION MAP NOT TO SCALE

35 36

12

"THIS PLAT"

SW-SW SE-SW

NE-SWNW-SWNE-SENW-SE

SW-SE SE-SE

NE-NENW-NE

SW-NE SE-NE SW-NW SE-NW

NE-NWNW-NW

SW 1/4, SECTION 36 - T8N- R8E

SW 1/4, SECTION 1 - T7N- R8ESW 1/4, SECTION 2 - T7N- R8E

PRELIMINARY PLAT of ZIEGLER FARM
UNPLATTED LANDS, BEING PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, AND PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1 TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 2 TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 35 TOWNSHIP 8
NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER , AND PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE

SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36 TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, ALL LOCATED IN THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

LEGEND 

1. FIELD WORK PERFORMED BY WYSER ENGINEERING, LLC. ON THE WEEKS OF JUNE 17TH & 24TH, AND JULY 8TH, 15TH, & 22ND, 2024.

2. NORTH REFERENCE FOR THIS ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY AND MAP ARE BASED ON THE WISCONSIN COORDINATE REFERENCE
SYSTEM, WISCRS DANE, NAD 83 (2011), GRID NORTH.  THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 08
NORTH, RANGE 08 EAST, BEARS N 0° 34' 03" W.

3. THIS PARCEL IS SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENTS AND AGREEMENTS, BOTH RECORDED AND UNRECORDED.

4. WYSER ENGINEERING HAS MADE NO INVESTIGATION OR INDEPENDENT SEARCH FOR EASEMENTS OF RECORD, ENCUMBRANCES,
RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, OWNERSHIP TITLE EVIDENCE, OR ANY OTHER FACTS THAN AN ACCURATE TITLE SEARCH MAY DISCLOSE.

5. ELEVATIONS ARE BASED ON THE NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 -  2012b ADJUSTMENT (NAVD88)(12b)

6. SUBSURFACE UTILITIES AND FIXTURES SHOWN ON THIS MAP HAVE BEEN APPROXIMATED BY LOCATING SURFACE FEATURES AND
ACCESSORIES, DIGGERS HOTLINE FIELD MARKINGS AND EXISTING MAPS AND RECORDS.

7. CONTOUR INTERVAL IS 1 FOOT AND HAVE BEEN DETERMINED BY A COMBINATION OF FIELD DATA AND DANE COUNTY LIDAR DATA.

8. ALL OF THE SUBJECT PARCEL LIES IN "ZONE X" AREAS DETERMINED TO BE BELOW THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN PER
NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE  PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 55025C0238H DATED SEPTEMBER 17, 2014, & MAP NO.
55025C0382G DATED JANUARY 2, 2009.

9. CURRENT PARCEL ZONING IS R1, AT-5, AND A-1(EX). PROPOSED ZONING IS CO-L & R1 FOR THE ENTIRE PARCEL.

10. ALL STREET RIGHT-OF-WAYS SHOWN WITHIN THE PLAT BOUNDARY ARE TO BE "DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC".

11. ALL OUTLOTS ARE TO BE PRIVATELY HELD AND MAINTAINED FOR OPEN SPACE PURPOSES AND EASEMENTS GIVEN TO THE PUBLIC
FOR STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND RECREATIONAL PURPOSES ACROSS THEM.

12. THE SALE OR TRANSFER OF ALL PLATTED LOTS NOT WITHIN THE PHASE COVERED BY A SUBSEQUENT FINAL PLAT AND ASSOCIATED
CITY/DEVELOPER AGREEMENT IS PROHIBITED.

13. ALL OF LANDS DEFINED AS OUTLOTS AND PART OF THE LANDS OF DEDICATED AS RIGHT-OF-WAYS FOR PUBLIC ROADS HAVE BEEN
USED TO MEET THE DEFINITION AS A CLUSTER SUBDIVISION.

14. OUTLOTS 2-7, 9-11 ARE TO BE PRIVATELY HELD AND MAINTAINED FOR PRIVATE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PURPOSES.

15. OUTLOTS 1, 12-14 ARE TO BE DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC FOR PARK, OPEN SPACE, AND CONSERVANCY PURPOSES.

16. OUTLOT 8 IS TO BE PRIVATELY HELD AND MAINTAINED FOR PRIVATE ALLEY PURPOSES.

NOTES

WEST  14 CORNER SECTION 36-T8N-R8E
FOUND SURVEY SPIKE WITH WASHER

N: 501,617.39  E: 789,831.35
( N: 501,617.37  E: 789,831.33 )
PER MARKS 2018 TIE SHEET

SE
CT

IO
N 

35
SE

CT
IO

N 
36

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AS SURVEYED 

OVERALL PARCEL
UNPLATTED LANDS, BEING PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, AND PART OF THE NORTHEAST
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1 TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 2 TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER OF SECTION 35 TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER , AND
PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36 TOWN 08 NORTH, RANGE 08 EAST, LOCATED IN THE
CITY OF MIDDLETON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENCING AT THE WEST QUARTER CORNER OF AFORESAID SECTION 36, THENCE, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 36, SOUTH 00 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 03 SECONDS EAST, 1495.76 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY
EXTENSION OF A SOUTH LINE OF REDTAIL RIDGE, RECORDED IN VOLUME 61-096B OF PLATS ON PAGES 571-575, AS DOCUMENT NO.
5928058, ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE, ALONG SAID EXTENSION AND THEN SAID SOUTH LINE, NORTH 89 DEGREES 03
MINUTES 24 SECONDS EAST, 1333.96 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER
OF AFORESAID SECTION 36, AND A CORNER OF OUTLOT 8, OF REDTAIL RIDGE - 1ST ADDITION, RECORDED IN VOLUME 62-014A OF PLATS
ON PAGES 71-73 AS DOCUMENT NO. 5979033; THENCE, ALONG SAID WEST LINE AND A WEST LINE OF SAID OUTLOT 8, SOUTH 00 DEGREES
39 MINUTES 42 SECOND EAST, 780.45 FEET TO A SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID OUTLOT 8; THENCE, ALONG A SOUTH LINE OF SAID
OUTLOT 8, NORTH 88 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 40 SECOND EAST, 1335.27 FEET  TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF AFORESAID SECTION 36; THENCE, ALONG SAID EAST LINE, SOUTH 00 DEGREES, 45 MINUTES, 22 SECONDS EAST, 371.51 FEET
TO THE SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 36; THENCE, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF AFORESAID
SECTION 1, SOUTH 00 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 01 SECONDS WEST, 165.02 FEET, TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH
LINE OF PHEASANT BRANCH RIDGE, RECORDED IN VOLUME 57-088B OF PLATS ON PAGES 341-343 AS DOCUMENT NO. 2920713; THENCE,
ALONG SAID EXTENSION AND THEN SAID NORTH LINE, SOUTH 88 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 28 SECONDS WEST, 2671.18 FEET TO A POINT ON
THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF AFORESAID SECTION 2; THENCE, ALONG SAID EAST LINE, SOUTH 00 DEGREES 07
MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST, 164.71 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF SPRING HILL ESTATES, RECORDED IN VOLUME
56-14B ON PAGES 36-37, AS DOCUMENT NO. 1981249; THENCE, ALONG SAID EXTENSION AND THEN SAID NORTH LINE, SOUTH 88 DEGREES
58 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST, 1325.30 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST
QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 2 AND THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SPRING HILL ESTATES; THENCE, ALONG SAID WEST LINE, NORTH 00
DEGREES 05 MINUTES 22 SECONDS WEST, 330.13 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER OF AFORESAID SECTION 35; THENCE, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER,
NORTH 00 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST, 99.00 FEET; THENCE, NORTH 34 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 17 SECONDS EAST, 568.23
FEET; THENCE, NORTH 00 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 26 SECONDS EAST, 135.67 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF MISTY VALLEY,
RECORDED IN VOLUME 59-040B OF PLATS ON PAGES 198-201 AS DOCUMENT NO. 4360973; THENCE, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID
MISTY VALLEY, NORTH 88 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 57 SECONDS EAST, 993.59 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER OF AFORESAID SECTION 35; THENCE, ALONG SAID EAST LINE, NORTH 00 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST 459.65 FEET,
BACK TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 3,716,520 SQUARE FEET OR 85.32 ACRES INCLUDING RIGHT-OF-WAY
SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 3,621,389 SQUARE FEED OR 83.14 ACRES EXCLUDING RIGHT-OF-WAY

S 0
° 3

9' 
42

" E
    

 78
0.4

5'

N 88° 53' 40" E     1335.27'

S 0
° 4

5' 
22

" E
    

 37
1.5

1'
S 0

° 0
5' 

01
" W

16
5.0

2'

S 88° 53' 28" W     2671.18'
( S 88° 28' 18" W   2670.82' )

PER PHEASANT BRANCH RIDGE

S 0
° 0

7' 
20

" E
16

4.7
1'

( 2
0 R

OD
S =

 33
0' 

)
N 

0°
 05

' 2
2"

 W
    

 33
0.1

3'
N 

0°
 33

' 2
7"

 W
99

.00
'

N 34
° 4

0' 1
7" 

E   
  5

68
.23

' N 
0°

 53
' 2

6"
 E

13
5.6

7'

N 
0°

 34
' 0

3"
 W

    
 45

9.6
5'

N 89° 03' 24" E     1333.96'

( EAST  60 RODS ) PER DEED DOC. NO. 5124694
( N 89° 00' 08" E   993.56' ) PER MISTY VALLEY

N 88° 58' 57" E     993.59'
M

IS
TY V

ALLEY
MISTY VALLEY

LOT 108LOT 107LOT 106LOT 105LOT 104LOT 103LOT 102

LOT 90

LOT 89

LOT 88

OUTLOT 5

LANDS

SPRING  HILL  ESTATES
LOT 7

LOT 56
LOT 55 LOT 54 LOT 53 LOT 52 LOT 51 LOT 50 LOT 49

LOT 48
OUTLOT 1

LOT 101

S 88° 58' 14" W     1325.12'
( S 88° 33' 51" W   1325.30' )
PER SPRING HILL ESTATES

OUTLOT 6LOT 100LOT 99LOT 98LOT 97LOT 96LOT 95
LOT 87

PHEASANT BRANCH RIDGE

LOT 80 LOT 81 LOT 82

LOT 83
LOT 90

LOT 91

PHEASANT BRANCH RIDGE

PHEASANT BRANCH RIDGELOT 1
OUTLOT 1 OUTLOT 2

OUTLOT 2

LOT 2

LOT 3

REDTAIL RIDGE REDTAIL RIDGE

OUTLOT 8

OUTLOT 1 LOT 2

CSM 16528

LOT 58 LOT 57 LOT 56
REDTAIL RIDGE - 1ST ADDITION

OUTLOT 8

REDTAIL RIDGE - 1ST ADDITION

SE
CT

IO
N 

2
SE

CT
IO

N 
1

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF
SECTION 36-T8N-R8E
FOUND BROKEN
ALUMINUM MONUMENT

N: 498,966.01  E: 789,857.61
( N: 498,965.94  E: 789,857.61 )
PER ADAMS 2017 TIE SHEET

WEST  14 CORNER SECTION 1-T7N-R8E
FOUND 1-1/4" REBAR

N: 496,314.43  E: 789,863.26
( N: 496,314.24  E: 789,863.24 )
PER ADAMS 2017 TIE SHEET

23
21

.71
'

SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTERSECTION 35
SECTION 2

SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTERSECTION 36
SECTION 1

BENCHMARK TABLE (ALL BENCHMARKS REFERENCED TO NAVD88 DATUM)

BM - 1

BM - 3

BM LABEL ELEVATION DESCRIPTION

898.09 TAG BOLT OF HYDRANT AT CANEEL TRAIL AND HIGH ROAD

911.00 TAG BOLT OF HYDRANT ON HIGH ROAD AT PROPOSED INTERSECTION OF GRABER AND HIGH ROAD

BM - 2 915.53 TAG BOLT OF HYDRANT AT CANEEL TRAIL AND MISTY VALLEY DRIVE

BM - 4 892.86 TAG BOLT OF HYDRANT AT THE END OF WHITTLESEY ROAD

BM - 5 925.56 TAG BOLT OF HYDRANT AT THE END OF WAXWING WAY

BM - 6 932.21 TAG BOLT OF HYDRANT AT WAXWING WAY AND THRASHER STREET

BM-6

BM-5

BM-4
BM-3

BM-2 BM-1

OHE OHE

RECORDED AS 

FOUND 1" IRON PIPE

FOUND PLSS SECTION MONUMENT TYPE NOTED 

CENTERLINE 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

PLATTED LINE
PLAT BOUNDRY LINE 

SECTION/QUARTER LINE

FOUND 1-1/4" REBAR

FOUND 3/4" REBAR

( XXX )

SOIL TYPE BOUNDARY

EXISTING OVERHEAD ELECTRIC 

COMM COMM

X X X X X EXISTING FENCE LINE

EDGE OF PAVEMENT 

EDGE OF GRAVEL 

EXISTING SEPTIC VENT 

EXISTING SANITARY OR SEPTIC MANHOLE

EXISTING WATER VALVE

CONTOUR MAJOR 

CONTOUR MINOR

895

EXISTING COMMUNICATION 
E EXISTING ELECTRIC 

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

EXISTING EASEMENT 

EDGE OF WOODS / TREE LINE

VERTICAL BENCHMARK 

PROPOSED EASEMENT

SAN SAN EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

WAT WAT EXISTING WATER MAIN
STM STM EXISTING STORM SEWER

GRAVEL OR RIP RAP

VLT

E

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER MANHOLE

EXISTING GAS VALVE

EXISTING GAS TEST STATION

EXISTING STORM MANHOLE

EXISTING UTILITY POLE

EXISTING CATCH BASIN

EXISTING INLET

EXISTING UTILITY VAULT

EXISTING TRANSFORMER

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

EXISTING UTILITY  PEDESTAL

WL WL DELINEATED WETLAND

SET 1-1/4" REBAR, 4.30 LB./FT.

ACCESS RESTRICTION

2671.76'  MON. TO MON.
( 2671.75' ) PER 2017 MIDDLETON REMONUMENTATION

1302.88'' 1302.87'

N 88° 53' 40" E
( N 88° 53' 34" E )

R: 892.34
I: 877.24

STRUCTURE INFORMATION
R= RIM  I= INVERT

896

75' WETLAND BUILDING SETBACK

LOT 79

S 0
° 0

7' 
20

" E
   2

65
1.5

9' 
 M

ON
 TO

 M
ON

( S
 0°

 07
' 1

7"
 E 

) P
ER

 20
17

 RE
M

ON
UM

EN
TA

TIO
N

( S
 0°

 32
' 0

2"
 E 

  2
65

1.5
0' 

) P
ER

 SP
RIN

G 
HI

LL
 ES

TA
TE

S
( S

 0°
 32

' 0
2"

 E 
)  P

ER
 PH

EA
SA

NT
 BR

AN
CH

 RI
DG

E

NW-NW

SW-SW

NE-NW

SE-SW
NE-NW

SE-SW

NW-NE

SW-SE

NW-NW

SE-SE

NE-NE

SW-SW

NE-NENW-NE

SE-SESW-SE

LANDS

LANDS

LANDS

LANDS

LANDS

LANDS

SOUTH  14 CORNER SECTION 36-T8N-R8E
FOUND 1-1

4" REBAR
N: 499,017.56  E: 792,528.88

( N: 499,017.57  E: 792,528.88 )
PER ADAMS 2017 TIE SHEET

N 
0°

34
' 0

3"
 W

   2
65

1.5
2' 

  M
ON

. T
O 

M
ON

.
( N

 0°
 34

' 1
2"

 W
    

26
51

.68
' ) 

PE
R M

IST
Y V

AL
LE

Y
( N

 0°
 34

' 1
2"

 W
    

26
51

.61
' ) 

PE
R M

ID
DL

ET
ON

 RI
DG

E A
T M

IST
Y V

AL
LE

Y
( N

 0°
 34

' 0
6"

 W
    

26
51

.56
' ) 

PE
R 2

01
8 T

OW
N 

RE
M

ON
UM

EN
TA

TIO
N

P.O.B.

14
95

.76
'

16
5.1

7'
( 1

0 R
OD

S )
( 1

65
.03

' )
PE

R P
HE

AS
AN

T
BR

AN
CH

 RI
DG

E

69
6.1

0'
( 6

96
.07

' )
( 4

2 R
OD

S )

THRASHER  STREET

W
A

X
W

IN
G

  W
A

Y

W
HITTLESEY  RO

AD

W
ES

T L
IN

E O
F T

HE
 SE

1/
4 -

 SW
1/

4
W

ES
T L

IN
E O

F T
HE

 SE
1/

4 -
 SW

1/
4

QUARTER/QUARTER LINE

NOTICE OF POSSIBLE LIMITATION OF PUBLIC SERVICES:
THIS PLAT CONTAINS PRIVATE STREETS, AND, AS A
RESULT, CERTAIN CITY SERVICES MAY BE LIMITED. THE
EXTENT OF THESE LIMITATIONS IS SPELLED OUT IN A
DOCUMENT CALLED A CITY/DEVELOPER AGREEMENT,
WHICH IS DIRECTLY RELATED TO THIS PLAT AND IS FILED
AS A PUBLIC DOCUMENT IN THE OFFICES OF BOTH THE
MIDDLETON CITY CLERK AND THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC
WORKS FOR THE CITY OF MIDDLETON.

35'     35'
7 0'

55'     35'

55'     50'

55'     50'

55'     50'

55'     50'

8 3'
33'     50'

40'     33'

7 3'

6 6'
33'     33'

Page 15 of 3351



OH
E

OHE
OHE

WAT

STM

X

X
XX X

E
E

E

E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E
E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E
E

E

E
E

E

E

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

WATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWATWAT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

WAT

WAT

WAT

W
AT

WAT

WAT

WAT

W
AT

WAT

WAT

WAT

WAT

W
AT

GAS

GA
S

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

GA
S

GAS
GAS

GA
S

GAS

GA
S

GAS
GAS

GAS

GA
S

GAS
GAS

GAS

XXXX
X X X X X

X
X

X
X

X

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

CO
M

M
CO

M
M

CO
M

M

CO
M

M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M CO

M
M

COM
M

COM
M

CO
M

M

COM
M

CO
M

M

COMM

CO
M

M
CO

M
M

CO
M

M
CO

M
M

COM
M

CO
M

M
CO

M
M

COM
M

SAN

SAN SAN SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SANSANSAN

SAN

SAN

XX
X

X

X X X X X X
X X X

X

X

ST
M

E
E

E
E

E

E
E

E
E

E

E

VLT

VLT

VL
T

VL
T

VL
T

VL
T

VLT

ST
M

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

W
L

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

STM

WL

W
L

WL

WL

W
L

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

SAN
SAN

STM

STM
STM

STM
STM STM STM STM STM STM STM STM STM STM STM STM STM

STM

STMSAN

SAN

900

905

89
5

89
5

89
5

89
5

900
905

910

915

920

925

915

920

90
5

91
0

91
5

92
0

92
5

910

915

920

925

930

935

910

915

920

925

930

935

940

945
920

925

930

930

930

935

935

935

905

910

915

920

925

915

92
0

925

89
590

090
591

0

LOT 27
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 8
10,235 SQ. FT.
0.23 ACRES LOT 11

8,233 SQ. FT.
0.19 ACRES

LOT 12
4,802 SQ. FT.
0.11 ACRES

LOT 13
5,542 SQ. FT.
0.13 ACRES

LOT 10
12,187 SQ. FT.
0.28 ACRES

OUTLOT 5
42,687 SQ FT
0.98 ACRES

LOT 4
7,185 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 2
6,594 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 7
6,600 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 3
7,428 SQ. FT.
0.17 ACRES

LOT 83
8,021 SQ. FT.
0.18 ACRES

LOT 82
7,650 SQ. FT.
0.18 ACRES

LOT 81
6,500 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 78
5,900 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 76
6,239 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 79
5,900 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 80
5,900 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 77
5,900 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 73
5,900 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 75
6,948 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 74
6,601 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 21
7,480 SQ. FT.
0.17 ACRES

OUTLOT 4
27,952 SQ FT
0.64 ACRES

LOT 44
7,560 SQ. FT.
0.17 ACRES

LOT 43
6,825 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 35
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 42
6,825 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 34
5,355 SQ. FT.
0.12 ACRES

LOT 41
6,825 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 33
7,582 SQ. FT.
0.17 ACRES

LOT 40
6,825 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 39
6,825 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 38
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 37
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 45
8,894 SQ. FT.
0.20 ACRES

LOT 36
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 61
6,484 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

OUTLOT 3
22,980 SQ FT
0.53 ACRES

LOT 57
6,482 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 58
6,483 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 59
6,483 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 60
6,484 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 64
8,424 SQ. FT.
0.19 ACRES

LOT 62
6,484 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 63
7,144 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRESLOT 65

12,686 SQ. FT.
0.29 ACRES

LOT 72
7,407 SQ. FT.
0.17 ACRES

LOT 70
7,771 SQ. FT.
0.18 ACRES

LOT 68
7,328 SQ. FT.
0.17 ACRES

LOT 66
6,644 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 67
7,291 SQ. FT.
0.17 ACRES

LOT 69
8,073 SQ. FT.
0.19 ACRES

LOT 22
9,113 SQ. FT.
0.21 ACRES

LOT 14
6,697 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 15
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 16
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 17
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 18
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 19
6,229 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 20
9,732 SQ. FT.
0.22 ACRES

LOT 56
7,877 SQ. FT.
0.18 ACRES

LOT 55
5,355 SQ. FT.
0.12 ACRES

LOT 54
5,355 SQ. FT.
0.12 ACRES

LOT 53
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 52
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 51
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 50
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 49
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 48
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 47
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 46
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 6
7,354 SQ. FT.
0.17 ACRES

LOT 5
7,618 SQ. FT.
0.17 ACRES

LOT 9
11,317 SQ. FT.
0.26 ACRES

LOT 1
9,031 SQ. FT.
0.21 ACRES

LOT 71
6,669 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 32
6,181 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 31
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 30
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 29
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 28
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 23
8,199 SQ. FT.
0.19 ACRES

LOT 24
6,825 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 25
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 26
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

59.0'59.0'
65.0'66.4'213.4'244.3'137.4'

33
0.

1'
99

.0
'

11.8'

55
6.4

'

13
5.

7'

60.5' 192.6' 102.0' 60.0' 136.6' 386.9'

10
5.

0'
10

5.
0'

39.5'

110.0'63.8'59.0'59.0'59.0'59.0'23.1'36.0'
50.3'

34.2'

51.0'

2 3

.6'

60
.0'

12
0.0

'

22
.4'

73
.2

'

2 5 .0' 74.2' 65.0'

55.8' 59.7'

60
5.

8'

10
8.

0'

30
.7

'
37

.6
'

75
.8'

27
.6'

120.7'

28
1.

3'

39.1'

85.2'84.9'

2 3 .6'

40
.8

'
47

.8
'

17
.5

'
36

.2
'

50.2'
49.4'

49
.3

'
3.

4 '
53

.9
'

52
.2

'

23.6
'

95.1'18.6'
79.9'

9.2'

51.0'

23.
6 '

82
.6'

1.9
'

58
.8

'
46

.8
'

106.9'

11
5.

8'

100.7'

109.7'

55
.8

'
47

.8
'

100.3'

10
6.

4'

136.6' 93.6'

72.8'

123.8'

69.7'
50.8'

67
.2

'
32

.9
'

110.1'

10
0.1

'

100.7'

59
.0'

59
.0'

59
.0'

67
.5'

101.8'

80
.8

'

105.2'

74
.4

'

22.2'
60.5'

66.3'

17.9'

65.5'

34.1'

55.6'
21.6

'
55

.1
'

51
.2

'
12

.7
'

55
.1

'
5.

8'
59

.0
'

33
.2

'
15

.5
'

4 0
.6

'
55

.8
'

24
.1'

32
.9'

59
.0'

59
.0'

59
.0'

59
.0'

65
.0'

41
.2'

49
.0

'
40

.0
'

50
.7

'

54
.8

'
59

.0
'

56
.5

'
30

.8
'

100.1'

100.0'

100.0'

100.0'

100.0'

100.0'

100.0'

100.0'

16
5.

2'

15.0'

100.0'

62
.2'

77
.5'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
7.

8'
65.7' 33.7' 31.3' 27.7' 37.3' 21.7' 43.3' 15.7' 49.3' 9.7' 55.3'

3.7'
55.3'

3.7'
55.3'

3.7'
55.3'

3.7'

51.0'
4.3'

46.7'

4.3'
72.8'

39.5'

48.8'51.0'59.0'59.0'59.0'59.0'65.0'65.0'65.0'65.0'65.0'58.8'

23

.6'

38
.0

'
50

.2
'

2.6'

10
3.

7'

21.6' 52.7' 59.0'
38.9'

80
.4

'
45

.0
'10

5.
0'

10
5.

0' 10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0' 10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
9.

9'

84
.5

'

39.7'

185.9'59.0'59.0'59.0'59.0'59.0'59.0'65.0'35.1'
52.8'

103.5'

117.1'

10
9.

9'

10
9.

9'

10
9.

9'

10
9.

9'

10
9.

9'

10
6.

8'

10
9.

9'

10
9.

9'

100.5'

100.0'

100.1'

100.0'

10
0.

0'

25
.9

'
20

.0
'

93.6'

10
6.

4'13
.0

'
50

.7
'

120.7'

35.0'

16
4.

7'

35.0'209.6'59.0'59.0'59.0'
59.0'

27
.6'

123.8'

10
5.

0'

59.7'
5.3'

59.0' 54.1'

4.9'

54.1'

4.9'

54.1'

4.9'

54.1'

4.9'
54.1'

4.9'
54.1'

4.9'

58.9'

10
5.

0'

65.0' 59.0' 59.0' 59.0' 59.0' 59.0' 59.0' 59.0' 58.9' 108.7'
39.1'

16
0.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

10
5.

0'

R=
20

0'
R=

20
0'

R=300'

R=320'

R=200'

R=
20

0'

926.7 HP

924.7 LP

7.
0%

2.0
%

925.3 FG

3.0
%

928.5 HP

4.0
%

922.1 FG

921.9 LP

5.
75

%

929.3 FG

929.2 LP

2.0%

943.6 FG

6.0%

932.2 HP

2.0%
5.0% 909.9 LP

OVERFLOW

5.0%
929.4 HP

4.0%
8.0% 897.3 LP

OV
ER

FL
OW

OV
ER

FL
OW

3.5%

913.2 FG

910.6 FG

8.0% 894.3 LP

OV
ER

FL
OW

2.
75

%

915.5 HP

3.
5%

OUTLOT 2
153,218 SQ FT
3.52 ACRES

116.2'

91
.6

'
12

.9
'

95.9'

60.6'

61.4'

66.4'

10
0.

0'

65
.0'

59
.0'

67
.0

'

61
.1'

24
6.

8'

100.0'

66.4'

100.0'

197.7'
56.1' 59.0' 59.0' 59.0' 59.0' 59.0' 59.0' 51.0' 51.0' 50.8'2.9'

OUTLOT 14
76,923 SQ FT
1.77 ACRES

OUTLOT 1
127,688 SQ FT
2.93 ACRES

33
0.

5'

24
3.

6'

43.2'

386.9' 55.0'

16
5.

2'

15.0'

70.3'

45.7'

44
.6

'

80
.8

'
74

.4
'

59
.0

'
30

.8
'

57.0'

18
8.

9'

27
8.

4'

76.3'

10
7.7

'

34
1.

2'

48
.8

'

SUBDIVIDER:
VH ACQUISITIONS, LLC
6801 SOUTH TOWN DRIVE
MADISON, WI  53715

SURVEYOR/ENGINEER/PLANNER:
WYSER ENGINEERING
300 EAST FRONT STREET
MOUNT HOREB, WI 53572
www.wyserengineering.com

OWNER:
LEONARD A. AND RUTH E. ZIEGLER LIVING TRUST
637 SPRUCE CIRCLE
VERONA, WI  53593

SE 1/4, SECTION 35 - T8N- R8E

LOCATION MAP NOT TO SCALE

"THIS PLAT"

SW 1/4, SECTION 36 - T8N- R8E

SW 1/4, SECTION 1 - T7N- R8ESW 1/4, SECTION 2 - T7N- R8E

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: BoD2

Soil: BoD2

Soil: BoD2

Soil: BoD2

Soil: TrB

Soil: DsC2

Soil: Os

Soil: Os

Soil: DsC2

Soil: KeB

Soil: KeB

Soil: KeB

Graber Pond

Soil: RpE

Soil: MdD2

Soil: DnC2 Soil: DnC2

Soil: KeB

Soil: KeB

Soil: Os

Soil: BbB

Soil: MdD2

PRELIMINARY PLAT of ZIEGLER FARM
UNPLATTED LANDS, BEING PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, AND PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1 TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 2 TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 35 TOWNSHIP 8
NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER , AND PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE

SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36 TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, ALL LOCATED IN THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

SOIL CLASSIFICATION LEGEND
MAP UNIT
SYMBOL MAP UNIT NAME

BbB

SOURCE OF MAP: NATIONAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION
SERVICE; SOIL SURVEY MAPS OF DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

BATAVIA SILT LOAM, 2-6% SLOPES
BoD2 BOYER SANDY LOAM, 12-20% SLOPES

DrD2 DRESDEN LOAM, 12-20% SLOPES
DsC2 DRESDEN SILT LOAM, 12-20% SLOPES
Ho HOUGHTON MUCK
KeB KEGONSA SILT LOAM, 2-6% SLOPES
MdD2 MCHENRY SILT LOAM, 12-20% SLOPES
Os ORION SILT LOAM, WET

ScC2 ST. CHARLES SILT LOAM, 6-12% SLOPES

DnC2 DODGE SILT LOAM, 6-12% SLOPES

RaA RADFORD SILT LOAM, 0-3% SLOPES

Wa WACOUSTA SILTY CLAY LOAM, 0-2% SLOPES

TrB TROXEL SILT LOAM, 0-3% SLOPES

RpE RODMAN SANDY LOAM, 12-30% SLOPES

W WATER

Soil: W

ROADWAY 'C'

GRABER  ROAD

ROADWAY 'A'

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 'B

'

M
IS

TY
  V

AL
LE

Y 
 D

RI
VE

20' WATER MAIN EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 4362802

20' WATER MAIN EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 4362802

20' WATER MAIN EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 4362802

60' RIGHT-OF-WAY
"DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC"

60' RIGHT-OF-WAY
"DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC"

70' RIGHT-OF-WAY
"DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC"

60'
 RIG

HT
-OF

-W
AY

GRABER  ROAD

"D
ED

IC
AT

ED
 T

O 
TH

E 
PU

BL
IC

"

M
IS

TY
  V

A
LL

EY
  D

R
IV

E

H
IG

H
  R

O
A

D
RIG

HT
-O

F-W
AY

 VA
RIE

S

ALL
BUILDINGS TO
BE REMOVED

R: 894.31
I: 877.11

R: 892.52
I: 879.32

R: 894.34
I: 882.48

R: 921.83
I: 909.83

35 36

12

SW-SW SE-SW

NE-SWNW-SWNE-SENW-SE

SW-SE SE-SE

NE-NENW-NE

SW-NE SE-NE SW-NW SE-NW

NE-NWNW-NW

20.0'

20.0'

Page 16 of 3352



OHE
OHE

OHE

WAT

STM

E

E

E
E

E

E
E

E

E
E

E

E

E

E

E

W
AT

GAS GAS

GA
S

GA
S

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

GAS

GA
S

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

CO
M

M
CO

M
M

CO
M

M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

CO
M

M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

CO
M

M

COM
M

CO
M

M

COM
M

COMM

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SANSAN

SAN

SAN

VL
T

VL
T

VL
T

VL
T

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
L

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

STM

WL

WL

WL

WL

W
L

W
L

WL
WL

WLWL
WL

WL

WL

W
LWL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL
WL

WL WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL
WL

WL
WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

880

885

890

895

900

905

910

915

920

925

93
0

93
5

94
0

905

91
0

915

920 92
5 930

935 94
0

900

905

910

895

885

890

895

885

890

895

900

90
5

910

915

920

925

930

935

89
5

89
5

89
5

89
5

89
5

OUTLOT 9
24,391 SQ FT
0.56 ACRES

LOT 94
6,489 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 93
6,989 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 101
19,754 SQ. FT.
0.45 ACRES

LOT 98
6,486 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 97
6,487 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 96
6,488 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 95
6,488 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 100
13,086 SQ. FT.
0.30 ACRES

LOT 99
8,352 SQ. FT.
0.19 ACRES

LOT 107
8,466 SQ. FT.
0.19 ACRES

LOT 106
6,490 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 105
6,490 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 104
6,490 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 103
8,490 SQ. FT.
0.19 ACRES

LOT 102
11,601 SQ. FT.
0.27 ACRES

LOT 123
6,162 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 122
6,365 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 121
7,480 SQ. FT.
0.17 ACRES

LOT 116
6,162 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 128
6,693 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 115
6,652 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 120
7,904 SQ. FT.
0.18 ACRES

LOT 124
6,216 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 119
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 125
5,355 SQ. FT.
0.12 ACRES

LOT 118
6,195 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 127
6,977 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 117
5,355 SQ. FT.
0.12 ACRES

LOT 131
6,490 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 137
7,142 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 136
7,849 SQ. FT.
0.18 ACRES

LOT 138
10,671 SQ. FT.
0.24 ACRES

LOT 139
8,703 SQ. FT.
0.20 ACRES

LOT 140
6,532 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 141
6,221 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 142
5,363 SQ. FT.
0.12 ACRES

LOT 135
8,061 SQ. FT.
0.19 ACRES

LOT 133
7,150 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 132
6,490 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 143
6,706 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 130
6,490 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 111
6,900 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 110
6,900 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 109
6,900 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 108
8,018 SQ. FT.
0.18 ACRES

LOT 114
6,900 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 113
6,900 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 112
6,900 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 161
6,584 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 162
6,584 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 163
6,584 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 164
6,584 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 168
5,900 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 165
6,584 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 172
5,098 SQ. FT.
0.12 ACRES

OUTLOT 8
9,785 SQ FT
0.22 ACRES LOT 151

3,515 SQ. FT.
0.08 ACRES

LOT 155
7,735 SQ. FT.
0.18 ACRES

LOT 154
6,076 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 153
3,036 SQ. FT.
0.07 ACRES

LOT 149
4,927 SQ. FT.
0.11 ACRES

LOT 150
6,054 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 144
4,700 SQ. FT.
0.11 ACRES

LOT 160
5,198 SQ. FT.
0.12 ACRES

LOT 126
5,363 SQ. FT.
0.12 ACRES

LOT 92
6,993 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 173
5,900 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

OUTLOT 6
10,411 SQ FT
0.24 ACRES

LOT 89
5,612 SQ. FT.
0.13 ACRES

LOT 91
5,611 SQ. FT.
0.13 ACRES

LOT 90
5,612 SQ. FT.
0.13 ACRES

LOT 86
5,613 SQ. FT.
0.13 ACRES

LOT 88
5,613 SQ. FT.
0.13 ACRES

LOT 87
5,613 SQ. FT.
0.13 ACRES

LOT 84
5,614 SQ. FT.
0.13 ACRES

LOT 85
5,614 SQ. FT.
0.13 ACRES

LOT 171
5,544 SQ. FT.
0.13 ACRES

LOT 170
5,100 SQ. FT.
0.12 ACRES

LOT 169
5,900 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 166
6,294 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 167
5,900 SQ. FT.
0.14 ACRES

LOT 159
3,885 SQ. FT.
0.09 ACRES

LOT 158
3,885 SQ. FT.
0.09 ACRES

LOT 157
3,885 SQ. FT.
0.09 ACRES

LOT 156
3,885 SQ. FT.
0.09 ACRES

LOT 145
3,515 SQ. FT.
0.08 ACRES
LOT 146

2,945 SQ. FT.
0.07 ACRES

LOT 147
3,515 SQ. FT.
0.08 ACRES

LOT 148
3,515 SQ. FT.
0.08 ACRES

LOT 152
2,945 SQ. FT.
0.07 ACRES LOT 134

7,159 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 129
7,025 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

10
2.

6'

59.0'

65.0'

65.0'

57.2'
162.0'

27
.9

'

14
4.7

'

44
.4'

60
.5

'

60
.5

'
2 4

. 5
'

32
.4

'
59

.0
'

51
.0

'
49

.0
'

2 3

.6 ' 94.9' 23.6'

49
.5

'
59

.0
'

59
.0

'
59

.0
'

65
.0

'
41

.7
'

23
.3

'

62
.0

'

23.6
'

90.4'

65.0'

20.7'

23 .6'

33
.9

'
35

.3
'

9.
0'

59
.0

'
59

.0
'

59
.0

'
14

.9
'

46
.0

'

59.6'

63.4'

63.4'

51.2'6.1'59.0'59.0'59.0'59.0'59.0'49.0'

23 .6'

95
.0

'

11
0.

0'

51.0' 51.0' 51.0' 51.0' 51.0' 51.0' 64.0' 60.0' 64.0' 59.0' 59.0' 59.0' 59.0'
59.0' 90.9' 129.6'

77.0'

98
.6

'
11

7.
0'

90
.7

'
59

.0
'

59
.0

'
59

.0
'

63
.7

'
65

.2
'

10
6.

2'
62

.0
'

11
0.

0'

18
0.6

'

168.2'

10
9.

9'

10
9.

9'

11
0.

0'

11
0.

0'

12
2.

1'

110.0'

110.0'

110.0'

110.0'

119.7'

41.0'64.0'

34
.3

'
24

.4
'

34
.6

'
24

.0
'

35
.0

'
16

.0
'

35
.0

'

105.0'

89.7'

90.3'23.6'

49
.0

'
13

.0
'

35
.3

'
28

.0
'

51
.0

'
51

.0
'

59
.8

'
58

.7
'

85
.1

'
2 3

.5' 48.6' 25.9'
83.2'

105.9'

16
.1

'
59

.0
'

59
.0

'
51

.0
'

15
.9

'
32

.6
'

15
.1

'
33

.9
'

23.6
'

10
1.

1'

96
.4'

0.1'

105.2'

54
.2

'

105.0'

0.1'

105.2'

64
.0

'

105.0'

105.0'

105.0'

105.0'

105.0'

106.0'

110.0'

110.0'

64
.0

'
64

.0
'

51
.0

'
8.

0'
51

.5
'

7.
5'

59
.0

'
1.

2'
63

.8
'

29
.8

'
35

.2
'

11
7.

2'

32.3'

66.6'

11
7.

2'

34.2' 76.9'

128.1'

106.3'

104.8'

105.1'

105.3'

110.0'

110.0'

110.0'

60
5.

8'

10
8.

0'

39

.1'
47.8' 59.0' 51.0' 85.0'

23.6'

40
.9

'
51

.0
'

59
.0

'
59

.0
'

59
.0

'
24

.2
'

32
.5

'
55

.4
'

55.4'

55.4 '

55.4'

55.4'

186.8'

142.9'

69.0'

69.0'

69.0'

69.0'
30.0'

69.0'

69.0'

41.9'

69.0'

69.0'

10
0.

0'

10
0.

0'

69.0'

10
0.

0'

10
0.

0'

10
0.

0'

10
0.

0'

10
2.6

'

75.5'

75.5' 10
1.3

'

75.5'

102.6'

101.3'

75.5'

100.0'

100.0'

100.0'

100.0'

100.0'

59
.0

'
68

.6
'

102.6'

75
.5

'

59.0' 51.0'

10
0.

0'

10
0.

0'

2 3

.6'

35
.0

'
37

.0
'

37
.0

'
37

.0
'

37
.0

'
10

0.
1'

16
.0

'1
0.

1'

114.5'

25.8'

52
.0'

31
.0'

31
.0'

37
.0'

88
.4

'

52
. 0

'
37

.0
'

35
.0

'

23.6'

80.0'26.0'90.0'

9.1' 22.3'
28.6'

26
.0'

37
.0'

39
.0

'
22

.9
'

14
.4

'
37

.0
'

37
.0

'
31

.0
'

37
.0

'
50

.0
'

95.0'

95.0'

95.0'

95.0'

9.7' 36.5'

63
.0'

40
.5

'
37

.0
'

50
.0

'

95.0'

95.0'

105.0'

105.0'

105.0'

105.0'

105.0'

8.
2'

95.0'
95.2'

95.0'

95.0'

28
1.

3'

11
0.

1'84
.9

'

39.4' 51.0'
23.6

'
95

.0
'

11
0.

1'

11
0.

1'

11
0.

1'

11
0.

1'

11
0.

0'

11
0.

0'

11
0.

0'

11
0.

0'

16
0.

0'

37
.0

'
31

.0
'

37
.0

'

37
.0

'
37

.0
'

37
.0

'

71.0' 51.0' 51.0' 51.0' 51.0' 51.0' 51.0' 51.0' 49.0'

55
.9

'
44

.1
'

6.
9'

59
.0

'
59

.0
'

R=300'

R=
20

0'

R=
20

0'

R=150'

R=
20

0'

R=250'

24
.4

'
894.3 LP

OV
ER

FL
OW

895.1 LP

OVERFLOW

913.6 FG

6.0%
2.0% 922.5 FG

1.0% 924.6 HP

924.0 FG

4.0%

7.
5%

888.9 LP

4.
25

%

894.1 FG

1.5%

888.7 LP

OVERFLOW

889.3 FG

888.6 LP

1.0%

1.0%

1.0%

889.8 HP

888.6 FG

0.6%

1.
5%

2.
25

%

922.1 LP

7.
75

%
3.0

%

893.7 LP

7.
75

%

888.9 LP

OVERFLOW

OUTLOT 11
27,703 SQ FT
0.64 ACRES

OUTLOT 10
48,588 SQ FT
1.12 ACRES

50.0' 95.4' 51.0' 51.0'

97
.2

'

95.5'
135.4'

12
0.

3'

69.0'
27.1'

10
0.

0' 10
0.

0'

69.0'

69.0'

10
1.3

'

64
.6'

66.5'

49.6'

153.0'

180.2'

10
0.

0'

48.0'
48.0'

12
0.

3'

OUTLOT 7
29,582 SQ FT
0.68 ACRES

257.5'

145.5'

177.6'191.2'

131.2'

133.6'

76.9'

33
0.

5'

69.0'

40.0'

51.1'

10
0.

0'
24

3.
6'

43.2'

83.2'

75
.5

'

75.5'

10
1.3

'

75.5'

75.5'

10
1.3

'

180.2'

12
0.

3'48.0'12
.0

'
10

0.
0' 10
0.

0'

55.0'

45
9.

6'

51.0'

102.6'

70.3'
109.4'

80.6'

84
.0

'

197.7'

SUBDIVIDER:
VH ACQUISITIONS, LLC
6801 SOUTH TOWN DRIVE
MADISON, WI  53715

SURVEYOR/ENGINEER/PLANNER:
WYSER ENGINEERING
300 EAST FRONT STREET
MOUNT HOREB, WI 53572
www.wyserengineering.com

SE 1/4, SECTION 35 - T8N- R8E

LOCATION MAP NOT TO SCALE

OWNER:
LEONARD A. AND RUTH E. ZIEGLER LIVING TRUST
637 SPRUCE CIRCLE
VERONA, WI  53593

"THIS PLAT"

SW 1/4, SECTION 36 - T8N- R8E

SW 1/4, SECTION 1 - T7N- R8ESW 1/4, SECTION 2 - T7N- R8E

Soil: TrB

Soil: Os

Soil: BbB

Soil: TrB

Soil: BbB

Soil: BbB

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DrD2

Soil: DrD2

Soil: DrD2

Soil: DrD2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: BbB

Soil: BbB

Soil: Wa

Soil: RaA

PRELIMINARY PLAT of ZIEGLER FARM
UNPLATTED LANDS, BEING PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, AND PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1 TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 2 TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 35 TOWNSHIP 8
NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER , AND PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE

SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36 TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, ALL LOCATED IN THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

R: 894.31
I: 877.11

R: 892.52
I: 879.32

R: 894.34
I: 882.48

ROADWAY 'D'

60' RIGHT-OF-WAY
"DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC"

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 'E

'
60

' R
IGH

T-O
F-W

AY
"D

ED
IC

AT
ED

 T
O 

TH
E 

PU
BL

IC
"

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 'D

'
60

' R
IGH

T-O
F-W

AY
"D

ED
IC

AT
ED

 T
O 

TH
E 

PU
BL

IC
"

W
A

X
W

IN
G

  W
A

Y
60

' R
IGH

T-O
F-W

AY
"D

ED
IC

AT
ED

 T
O 

TH
E 

PU
BL

IC
"

PR
IV

A
TE

 A
LL

EY

H
O

O
D

ED
  M

ER
G

A
N

SE
R

  D
R

IV
E

60
' R

IGH
T-O

F-W
AY

"D
ED

IC
AT

ED
 T

O 
TH

E 
PU

BL
IC

"

HOODED  MERGANSER  DRIVE

60' RIGHT-OF-WAY

"DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC"

30' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 2849204

10'
10'

20'

N 
8°

 48
' 3

0"
 E 

 18
7.4

6'

20' PUBLIC SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

CL
 ES

M
T =

CL
 ES

MT
 = 

N 
25

° 4
0' 

51
" E

  1
01

.15
'

OUTLOT 10
1,449,858 SQ FT

33.28 ACRES

OUTLOT 10
1,449,858 SQ FT

33.28 ACRES

OUTLOT 10
1,449,858 SQ FT

33.28 ACRES

H
IG

H
  R

O
A

D
RIG

HT
-O

F-W
AY

 VA
RIE

S

16.5' RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 3225000 TO BE RELEASED

16.5' RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 3225000 TO BE RELEASED

35 36

12

SW-SW SE-SW

NE-SWNW-SWNE-SENW-SE

SW-SE SE-SE

NE-NENW-NE

SW-NE SE-NE SW-NW SE-NW

NE-NWNW-NW

Page 17 of 3353



OHE
OHE

E
E

E
E

E
E

E

E
E

E
E

E

E
E

E
E

E

W
AT

pp

79000
865.69ohe1 b

79001
865.81

pp

79004
862.82
ohe1

79005
863.04

pp

79006
861.38

pp

79007
860.75
ohe1

79008
860.61

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

GAS
GAS

GAS
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
E

OH
EGA

S
GA

S

GAS

GA
S

GAS

GA
S

GAS
GAS

GA
S

GAS
GAS

CO
M

M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

COM
M

CO
M

M

COM
M

CO
M

M

SAN

SAN

SANSANSANSAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN

STMSTM

ST
M

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
AT

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L W

L

WL

W
L

W
L

WL

WL

W
L

WL

WL
WL

WL

WL

WL WL WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

W
LWL

WL
WL

WL

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L W

L

W
L

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL
WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL WL WL WL WL WL WL
WL

WL
WL

WL

WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWLWL
WL

880

885

890

895

885

890

88
5

890

895

900

905

89
5

900
905

910

915

LOT 111
6,900 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 114
6,900 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 113
6,900 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRES

LOT 112
6,900 SQ. FT.
0.16 ACRESLOT 161

6,584 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

LOT 162
6,584 SQ. FT.
0.15 ACRES

OUTLOT 13
1,120,287 SQ FT

25.72 ACRES

62
.0

'

350.7'
951.6'

32.9'

37
1.

5'
16

5.
0'

'

55.4'

186.8'

142.9'

69.0'
69.0'

41.9'
69.0'

69.0'

10
0.

0' 69.0'

10
0.

0'

10
0.

0'

10
0.

0'

10
2.6

'

75.5'

75.5' 10
1.3

'

75.5'

16
5.

2'

15.0'

39.7'

40.0'

2314.9'

281.3'35.0'

16
4.

7'

50'

909.9 LP

897.3 LP

OV
ER

FL
OW

OV
ER

FL
OW

894.3 LP

OV
ER

FL
OW

1.5%

888.7 LP

OVERFLOW

OUTLOT 11
27,703 SQ FT
0.64 ACRES

OUTLOT 10
48,588 SQ FT
1.12 ACRES 97

.2
'

95.5' 135.4'

12
0.

3'

69.0'
27.1'

10
0.

0'

24
6.

8'

10
0.

0'

69.0'
69.0'

10
1.3

'

64
.6'

66.5'

49.6'

153.0'

180.2'

10
0.

0'

48.0'
48.0'

12
0.

3'

OUTLOT 12
223,066 SQ FT
5.12 ACRES

OUTLOT 14
76,923 SQ FT
1.77 ACRES

80
.7

'

13
4.9

'

239.0'

339.3'

257.5'

145.5'

177.6'191.2'

131.2'

133.6'

10
1.3

'

75.5'

75.5'

10
1.3

'

180.2'

12
0.

3'

48.0'12
.0

'
10

0.
0'

10
0.

0'

16
5.

2'

15.0'

70.3' 109.4'
80.6'

84
.0

'

197.7'

130.7'

95.4'146.0'45.7'

44
.6

'

175.7'

58.7'

98.8'

Lot Area Table

Parcel #

Lot 1

Lot 2

Lot 3

Lot 4

Lot 5

Lot 6

Lot 7

Lot 8

Lot 9

Lot 10

Lot 11

Lot 12

Lot 13

Lot 14

Lot 15

Lot 16

Lot 17

Lot 18

Lot 19

Lot 20

Lot 21

Lot 22

Lot 23

Lot 24

Lot 25

Lot 26

Lot 27

Lot 28

Lot 29

Lot 30

Area (sq.ft.)

9,031

6,594

7,428

7,185

7,618

7,354

6,600

10,235

11,317

12,187

8,233

4,802

5,542

6,697

6,195

6,195

6,195

6,195

6,229

9,732

7,480

9,113

8,199

6,825

6,195

6,195

6,195

6,195

6,195

6,195

Area (acre)

0.21

0.15

0.17

0.16

0.17

0.17

0.15

0.23

0.26

0.28

0.19

0.11

0.13

0.15

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.22

0.17

0.21

0.19

0.16

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

Lot Area Table

Parcel #

Lot 31

Lot 32

Lot 33

Lot 34

Lot 35

Lot 36

Lot 37

Lot 38

Lot 39

Lot 40

Lot 41

Lot 42

Lot 43

Lot 44

Lot 45

Lot 46

Lot 47

Lot 48

Lot 49

Lot 50

Lot 51

Lot 52

Lot 53

Lot 54

Lot 55

Lot 56

Lot 57

Lot 58

Lot 59

Lot 60

Area (sq.ft.)

6,195

6,181

7,582

5,355

6,195

6,195

6,195

6,195

6,825

6,825

6,825

6,825

6,825

7,560

8,894

6,195

6,195

6,195

6,195

6,195

6,195

6,195

6,195

5,355

5,355

7,877

6,482

6,483

6,483

6,484

Area (acre)

0.14

0.14

0.17

0.12

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.16

0.16

0.16

0.16

0.16

0.17

0.20

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.12

0.12

0.18

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.15

Lot Area Table

Parcel #

Lot 61

Lot 62

Lot 63

Lot 64

Lot 65

Lot 66

Lot 67

Lot 68

Lot 69

Lot 70

Lot 71

Lot 72

Lot 73

Lot 74

Lot 75

Lot 76

Lot 77

Lot 78

Lot 79

Lot 80

Lot 81

Lot 82

Lot 83

Lot 84

Lot 85

Lot 86

Lot 87

Lot 88

Lot 89

Lot 90

Area (sq.ft.)

6,484

6,484

7,144

8,424

12,686

6,644

7,291

7,328

8,073

7,771

6,669

7,407

5,900

6,601

6,948

6,239

5,900

5,900

5,900

5,900

6,500

7,650

8,021

5,614

5,614

5,613

5,613

5,613

5,612

5,612

Area (acre)

0.15

0.15

0.16

0.19

0.29

0.15

0.17

0.17

0.19

0.18

0.15

0.17

0.14

0.15

0.16

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.15

0.18

0.18

0.13

0.13

0.13

0.13

0.13

0.13

0.13

Lot Area Table

Parcel #

Lot 91

Lot 92

Lot 93

Lot 94

Lot 95

Lot 96

Lot 97

Lot 98

Lot 99

Lot 100

Lot 101

Lot 102

Lot 103

Lot 104

Lot 105

Lot 106

Lot 107

Lot 108

Lot 109

Lot 110

Lot 111

Lot 112

Lot 113

Lot 114

Lot 115

Lot 116

Lot 117

Lot 118

Lot 119

Lot 120

Area (sq.ft.)

5,611

6,993

6,989

6,489

6,488

6,488

6,487

6,486

8,352

13,086

19,754

11,601

8,490

6,490

6,490

6,490

8,466

8,018

6,900

6,900

6,900

6,900

6,900

6,900

6,652

6,162

5,355

6,195

6,195

7,904

Area (acre)

0.13

0.16

0.16

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.19

0.30

0.45

0.27

0.19

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.19

0.18

0.16

0.16

0.16

0.16

0.16

0.16

0.15

0.14

0.12

0.14

0.14

0.18

Lot Area Table

Parcel #

Lot 121

Lot 122

Lot 123

Lot 124

Lot 125

Lot 126

Lot 127

Lot 128

Lot 129

Lot 130

Lot 131

Lot 132

Lot 133

Lot 134

Lot 135

Lot 136

Lot 137

Lot 138

Lot 139

Lot 140

Lot 141

Lot 142

Lot 143

Lot 144

Lot 145

Lot 146

Lot 147

Lot 148

Lot 149

Lot 150

Area (sq.ft.)

7,480

6,365

6,162

6,216

5,355

5,363

6,977

6,693

7,025

6,490

6,490

6,490

7,150

7,159

8,061

7,849

7,142

10,671

8,703

6,532

6,221

5,363

6,706

4,700

3,515

2,945

3,515

3,515

4,927

6,054

Area (acre)

0.17

0.15

0.14

0.14

0.12

0.12

0.16

0.15

0.16

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.16

0.16

0.19

0.18

0.16

0.24

0.20

0.15

0.14

0.12

0.15

0.11

0.08

0.07

0.08

0.08

0.11

0.14

Lot Area Table

Parcel #

Lot 151

Lot 152

Lot 153

Lot 154

Lot 155

Lot 156

Lot 157

Lot 158

Lot 159

Lot 160

Lot 161

Lot 162

Lot 163

Lot 164

Lot 165

Lot 166

Lot 167

Lot 168

Lot 169

Lot 170

Lot 171

Lot 172

Lot 173

Area (sq.ft.)

3,515

2,945

3,036

6,076

7,735

3,885

3,885

3,885

3,885

5,198

6,584

6,584

6,584

6,584

6,584

6,294

5,900

5,900

5,900

5,100

5,544

5,098

5,900

Area (acre)

0.08

0.07

0.07

0.14

0.18

0.09

0.09

0.09

0.09

0.12

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.14

0.12

0.13

0.12

0.14

Outlot Area Table

Parcel #

OUTLOT 1

OUTLOT 2

OUTLOT 3

OUTLOT 4

OUTLOT 5

OUTLOT 6

OUTLOT 7

OUTLOT 8

OUTLOT 9

OUTLOT 10

OUTLOT 11

OUTLOT 12

OUTLOT 13

OUTLOT 14

Area (sq.ft.)

127,688

153,218

22,980

27,952

42,687

10,411

29,582

9,785

24,391

48,588

27,703

223,066

1,120,287

76,923

Area (acre)

2.93

3.52

0.53

0.64

0.98

0.24

0.68

0.22

0.56

1.12

0.64

5.12

25.72

1.77

SUBDIVIDER:
VH ACQUISITIONS, LLC
6801 SOUTH TOWN DRIVE
MADISON, WI  53715

SURVEYOR/ENGINEER/PLANNER:
WYSER ENGINEERING
300 EAST FRONT STREET
MOUNT HOREB, WI 53572
www.wyserengineering.com

SE 1/4, SECTION 35 - T8N- R8E

LOCATION MAP NOT TO SCALE

"THIS PLAT"

OWNER:
LEONARD A. AND RUTH E. ZIEGLER LIVING TRUST
637 SPRUCE CIRCLE
VERONA, WI  53593

SW 1/4, SECTION 36 - T8N- R8E

SW 1/4, SECTION 1 - T7N- R8ESW 1/4, SECTION 2 - T7N- R8E

Soil: Os

Soil: BbB

Soil: Wa

Soil: RaA

Soil: BbB

Soil: KeB

Soil: ScC2

Soil: Os
Soil: Os

Soil: Os

Soil: RaA

Soil: Wa

Soil: BbB

Soil: TrB
Soil: DsC2

Soil: DsC2

Soil: Wa

Soil: Ho

Soil: Ho

PRELIMINARY PLAT of ZIEGLER FARM
UNPLATTED LANDS, BEING PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, AND PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1 TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 2 TOWNSHIP 7 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 35 TOWNSHIP 8
NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER , AND PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE

SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36 TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 8 EAST, ALL LOCATED IN THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

I, ZACHARY M. REYNOLDS, WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR S-3223,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY AND MAP IS CORRECT TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF WITH THE INFORMATION PROVIDED, BY THE
ORDER OF THOSE LISTED HEREON,  AND THAT THIS SURVEY COMPLIES WITH
AE 7 OF THE WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE CODE AND THE PROVISIONS AS
STATED IN THE CITY OF MIDDLETON - CODE OF ORDINANCES .

ZACHARY M. REYNOLDS, S-3223 DATE
WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE

R: 894.31
I: 877.11

R: 887.03
I: 875.00

R: 892.96
I: 871.30

R: 890.97
I: 867.97

30' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 2849204

30' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 2849204

CL ESMT = N 56° 51' 31" W  306.73'

CL
 ES

M
T =

 N
 11

° 1
0' 

36
" W

  2
39

.66
'

(N
 11

° 1
6' 

04
" W

) P
ER

 D
OC

. N
O.

 28
49

20
4

(N 56° 56' 59" W) PER DOC. NO 2849204

333.58' TO CL EASEMENT 193.07' TO CL EASEMENT

CL
 ES

M
T =

 N
 8°

 48
' 3

0"
 E18

7.4
6'

CL
 ES

MT
 =

N 
18

° 0
6' 

42
" W

  3
25

.75
'

20' PUBLIC SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

10'10'

OUTLOT 10
1,449,858 SQ FT

33.28 ACRES

H
IG

H
  R

O
A

D
RIG

HT
-O

F-W
AY

 VA
RIE

S

PH
EA

SA
N

T 
 B

R
A

N
C

H
  R

O
A

D

RIG
HT

-O
F-W

AY
 VA

RIE
S

16.5' RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENT
PER DOC. NO. 3225000 TO BE

RELEASED

35 36

12

SW-SW SE-SW

NE-SWNW-SWNE-SENW-SE

SW-SE SE-SE

NE-NENW-NE

SW-NE SE-NE SW-NW SE-NW

NE-NWNW-NW

Page 18 of 3354



Page 19 of 3355



Page 20 of 3356



Page 21 of 3357



Page 22 of 3358



Page 23 of 3359



Page 24 of 3360



Page 25 of 3361



Page 26 of 3362



Page 27 of 3363



Page 28 of 3364



Page 29 of 3365



Page 30 of 3366



Page 31 of 3367



Page 32 of 3368



Page 33 of 3369



 
 

 

DEPT. OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
CITY OF MIDDLETON     PH  608.821.8394   FAX  608.827.1080 

7426 HUBBARD AVENUE    E-MAIL:  mopitz@ci.middleton.wi.us 

MIDDLETON, WI  53562-3118   WEB:  www.cityofmiddleton.us  
 

 

Date: October 3, 2024 

 

To:      Middleton Plan Commission 

 

From: Mark Opitz, City Planner & Zoning Administrator 

 

Re: Updates to City of Middleton Official Map 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

1) Direct staff to revise the official map based on the proposed changes below, and  

2) Refer the draft map to the Ped/Bike/Transit Committee; Parks/Recreation/Forestry 

Commission; and Public Works Committee for their input before the Common Council 

conducts a public hearing and considers adopting the updated map.  

 

PROPOSED CHANGES 

 

In addition to updating streets, paths, parks, and greenways to reflect recent construction and the plats 

approved for Belle Farm and Retail Ridge (as authorized by state statute), Planning staff propose to 

make the following revisions: 

1. Expand the greenway east of High Road to reflect the recently-completed wetland delineation. 

2. Reduce the greenway shown through the former Ziegler Farm west of High Road to align with 

the Future Land Use Map in the Comprehensive Plan. The single-family development that is 

proposed for this property does not provide the level of density that would provide generate 

enough park dedication requirements and fees to justify such a large greenway / parkland 

acquisition. 

3. Re-align Bishops Bay Parkway in the unplatted portion so that it connects to the platted 

alignment in the Westport phases of the development.  

4. Extend the North Mendota Path along the north side of Highway M east of the city limits. 

5. Extend the greenway between the confluence pond and Highway 12 to reflect current greenway 

boundaries.  

6. Extend Firemen’s Park greenway north to connect with Pheasant Branch Creek greenway so as 

to reflect park boundaries.  

7. Remove parkland dedication from the City-owned parking lot along Terrace Avenue to align 

with environmental corridor revisions previously authorized by the City and Capital Area 

Regional Planning Commission. 

BACKGROUND 

 

Wisconsin cities may adopt official maps to “to conserve and promote the public health, safety, 

convenience or general welfare.” They are authorized by state statute to establish and "amend the 

Official Map - Concept Review of Proposed Revisions...Official Map - Concept Review of Proposed Revisions...

Page 1 of 570

http://www.cityofmiddleton.us/


 
 

 

official map of the city so as to establish the exterior lines of planned new streets, highways, historic 

districts, parkways, railroad rights-of-way, public transit facilities, waterways, parks or playgrounds, or 

to widen, narrow, extend or close existing streets, highways…”. Cities like Middleton may officially 

map facilities located within the extraterritorial subdivision plat review area, which extends up to three 

miles from the city limits. Wis. Stats. Sec. 62.23(6)(c) also states that "The placing of any street, 

highway… line or lines upon the official map does not constitute the opening or establishment of any 

street, parkway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility, park or playground or alteration of any 

waterway, or the taking or acceptance of any land for these purposes." 

 

Prior to adopting the official map, the City Council (“or a committee appointed from its members”) 

must hold a public hearing (Class 2 notice) on the proposed amendments and then refer the matter back 

to the Plan Commission, which has 60 days to act. The updated map must then be adopted either by 

ordinance or resolution. The approval of a subdivision plat automatically updates the features on the 

official map within the platted area without the need to hold a public hearing. 

 

Full text of Wisconsin Statutes 62.23(6) 

 
(6)  OFFICIAL MAP. 

 

(a) As used in this subsection, "waterways" includes rivers, streams, creeks, ditches, drainage channels, 

watercourses, lakes, bays, ponds, impoundment reservoirs, retention and detention basins, marshes and other 

surface water areas, regardless of whether the areas are natural or artificial. 

 

(am) 

1. In this paragraph: 

a. "Airport" means an airport as defined under s. 114.002 (7) which is owned or operated by a 

county, city, village or town either singly or jointly with one or more counties, cities, villages or 

towns. 

b. "Airport affected area" means the area established by an agreement under s. 66.1009. If a 

county, city, village or town has not established such an agreement, "airport affected area" in 

that county, city, village or town means the area located within 3 miles of the boundaries of an 

airport. 

2. If the council of any city which is not located in whole or in part in a county with a population of 

500,000 or more has established an official map under par. (b), the map shall show the location of any 

part of an airport located within the area subject to zoning by the city and any part of an airport affected 

area located within the area subject to zoning by the city. 

 

(b) The council of any city may by ordinance or resolution establish an official map of the city or any part 

thereof showing the streets, highways, historic districts, parkways, parks and playgrounds laid out, adopted and 

established by law. The city may also include the location of railroad rights-of-way, waterways and public 

transit facilities on its map. A city may include a waterway on its map only if the waterway is included in a 

comprehensive surface water drainage plan. The map is conclusive with respect to the location and width of 

streets, highways, waterways and parkways, and the location and extent of railroad rights-of-way, public transit 

facilities, parks and playgrounds shown on the map. The official map is declared to be established to conserve 

and promote the public health, safety, convenience or general welfare. The ordinance or resolution shall require 

the city clerk at once to record with the register of deeds of the county or counties in which the city is situated a 

certificate showing that the city has established an official map. An ordinance or resolution establishing any part 

of an official map enacted prior to June 16, 1965, which would be valid under this paragraph is hereby validated. 

 

(c) The city council may amend the official map of the city so as to establish the exterior lines of planned new 

streets, highways, historic districts, parkways, railroad rights-of-way, public transit facilities, waterways, parks 

or playgrounds, or to widen, narrow, extend or close existing streets, highways, historic districts, parkways, 

railroad rights-of-way, public transit facilities, waterways, parks or playgrounds. No such change may become 

Page 2 of 571

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/1999/114.002(7)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/1999/66.1009
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/1999/62.23(6)(b)


 
 

 

effective until after a public hearing concerning the proposed change before the city council or a committee 

appointed by the city council from its members, at which parties in interest and citizens shall have an 

opportunity to be heard. Notice of the public hearing shall be published as a class 2 notice under ch. 985. Before 

amending the map, the council shall refer the matter to the city plan commission for report, but if the city plan 

commission does not make its report within 60 days of reference, it forfeits the right to further suspend action. 

When adopted, amendments become a part of the official map of the city, and are conclusive with respect to the 

location and width of the streets, highways, historic districts, waterways and parkways and the location and 

extent of railroad rights-of-way, public transit facilities, parks and playgrounds shown on the map. The placing 

of any street, highway, waterway, parkway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility, park or playground line 

or lines upon the official map does not constitute the opening or establishment of any street, parkway, railroad 

right-of-way, public transit facility, park or playground or alteration of any waterway, or the taking or 

acceptance of any land for these purposes. 

 

(d) The locating, widening or closing, or the approval of the locating, widening or closing of streets, highways, 

waterways, parkways, railroad rights-of-way, public transit facilities, parks or playgrounds by the city under 

provisions of law other than this section shall be deemed to amend the official map, and are subject to this 

section, except that changes or additions made by a subdivision plat approved by the city under ch. 236 do not 

require the public hearing specified in par. (c) if the changes or additions do not affect any land outside the 

platted area. 

 

(e) No permit may be issued to construct or enlarge any building within the limits of any street, highway, 

waterway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility or parkway, shown or laid out on the map except as 

provided in this section. The street, highway, waterway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility or parkway 

system shown on the official map may be shown on the official map as extending beyond the boundaries of a 

city or village a distance equal to that within which the approval of land subdivision plats by the city council or 

village board is required as provided by s. 236.10 (1) (b) 2. Any person desiring to construct or enlarge a 

building within the limits of a street, highway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility or parkway so shown 

as extended may apply to the authorized official of the city or village for a building permit. Any person desiring 

to construct or enlarge a building within the limits of a street, highway, waterway, railroad right-of-way, public 

transit facility or parkway shown on the official map within the incorporated limits of the municipality shall 

apply to the authorized official of the city or village for a building permit. Unless an application is made, and the 

building permit granted or not denied within 30 days, the person is not entitled to compensation for damage to 

the building in the course of construction of the street, highway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility or 

parkway shown on the official map. Unless an application is made, and the building permit granted or not denied 

within 30 days, the person is not entitled to compensation for damage to the building in the course of 

construction or alteration of the waterway shown on the official map within the incorporated limits of the 

municipality. If the land within the mapped street, highway, waterway, railroad right-of-way, public transit 

facility or parkway is not yielding a fair return, the board of appeals in any municipality which has established 

such a board having power to make variances or exceptions in zoning regulations may, by the vote of a majority 

of its members, grant a permit for a building or addition in the path of the street, highway, waterway, railroad 

right-of-way, public transit facility or parkway, which will as little as practicable increase the cost of opening the 

street, highway, waterway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility or parkway or tend to cause a change of 

the official map. The board may impose reasonable requirements as a condition of granting the permit to 

promote the health, convenience, safety or general welfare of the community. The board shall refuse a permit 

where the applicant will not be substantially affected by not constructing the addition or by placing the building 

outside the mapped street, highway, waterway, railroad right-of-way, public transit facility or parkway. 

 

(f) In any city in which there is no such board of appeals, the city council shall have the same powers and shall 

be subject to the same restrictions. For this purpose such council is authorized to act as a discretionary 

administrative or quasi-judicial body. When so acting it shall not sit as a legislative body but in a separate 

meeting and with separate minutes kept. 

 

(g) Before taking any action authorized in this subsection, the board of appeals or city council shall hold a 

hearing at which parties in interest and others shall have an opportunity to be heard. At least 15 days before the 

Page 3 of 572

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20985
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20236
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/62.23(6)(c)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/236.10(1)(b)2.


 
 

 

hearing notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be published as a class 1 notice, under ch. 985. Any 

decision under this paragraph shall be subject to review by certiorari pursuant to sub. (7) (e) 10. a., except that if 

the decision is on an application for an approval, as defined in s. 781.10 (1) (a), the decision shall be subject to 

review under the procedures contained in s. 781.10. 

 

(h) In any city that has established an official map, no public sewer or other municipal street utility or 

improvement may be constructed in any street, highway, or parkway until the street, highway, or parkway is 

placed on the official map. No permit for the erection of any building may be issued unless a street, highway, or 

parkway giving access to the proposed structure has been placed on the official map. Where the enforcement of 

the provisions of this section would entail practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship, and where the 

circumstances of the case do not require the structure to be related to existing or proposed streets, highways, or 

parkways, the applicant for a permit may appeal from the decision of the administrative officer having charge of 

the issue of permits to the board of appeals in any city that has established a board having power to make 

variances or exceptions in zoning regulations, and the same provisions are applied to appeals under this 

paragraph and to boards as are provided in cases of appeals on zoning regulations. The board may in passing on 

an appeal under this paragraph make any reasonable exception, and issue the permit subject to conditions that 

will protect any future street, highway, or parkway layout. Any decision under this paragraph shall be subject to 

review by certiorari pursuant to sub. (7) (e) 10. a., except that if the decision is on an application for an approval, 

as defined in s. 781.10 (1) (a), the decision shall be subject to review under the procedures contained in 

s. 781.10. In any city in which there is no board of appeals the city council shall have the same powers and be 

subject to the same restrictions, and the same method of court review shall be available. For purpose of appeal 

under this paragraph, the council is authorized to act as a discretionary administrative or quasi-judicial body. 

When so acting it shall not sit as a legislative body, but in a separate meeting and with separate minutes kept. 

 

 (i) In those counties where the county maintains and operates parks, parkways, playgrounds, bathing beaches 

and other recreational facilities within the limits of any city, such city shall not include said facilities in the 

master plan without the approval of the county board of supervisors. 

 

Page 4 of 573

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/ch.%20985
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/62.23(7)(e)10.a.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/781.10(1)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/781.10
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/62.23(7)(e)10.a.
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/781.10(1)(a)
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/781.10


East End
Historic
District

Historic
Pheasant Branch
Crossing District

PE
AK
 VI
EW

AUG
UST

ABLACKW
O
LF

SAWG
RASS

PK
W
Y

CALLAW
AY

ST A
NNE

SCO
NG
RE
SSI
ON
AL 
HIL

L

BREA
KERS

CRYSTAL

N
S

CITY LIMITS

CITY LIMITS

METROPOLITAN
COMMUNITY
PARK

N
U
R
SE
R
YD
EM

IN
G
 W
AY

FORSYTHIA

RD

ALGONQUI
NWHITTLESEY

H
ILL

CO
NS
ER
VA
NC
Y 
LN

R
ES
EA
R
CH

GL
AD
E

BL
AC
K

RI
D
G
E

H
ED
D
EN
 R
D

MARKETW
AY ST

SANDHI
LL PA

SS

GRASS
INDIGO

TRL

RD

RD

GIALAMAS

GR
EE
NW
AY

JO
H
N
 Q
 H
AM

M
O
N
S

HOLIDAY

W
ES
TC
HE
ST
ER

PA
R
M
EN
TE
R

ST

HILLCREST

TIEDEMAN

STRICKER

ESSER

POND

POND

GRABER POND

CE
NT
UR
Y

G
R
EE
N
VI
EW

MURPHY

GRABER

ME
AD
OW
CR
ES
T

CL
OV
ER
NO
OK

ST
ON
EF
IE
LD

CIR

SW
EENEY

SH
IRLEY

POND VIEW RD

AV
E

COOPER

BR
IA
RC
LI
FF

RD

MARSHALL
PARK

M
ARINA

MOCKINGBIRD

H
EN
R
Y

M
EA
D
O
W
BR
O
O
K

UNIVERSITY

OAKW
OOD PL

BOULDER

MENDOTA

AL
LE
N
 B
LV
D

FRIENDSHIP
LN

CE
DA
R

ROOSEVEL
T

H
AM

BR
EC
H
T

MEN
DO
TA

SA
VA
N
N
AH

ROCK

RED
TAIL

SEDGEMEADOW

RD

HE
RO
N

SHORECREST
CITY LIMITS

(CITY OF MADISON)

AV
E

EV
ER
G
RE
EN

CA
PI
TO
L

AIRPORT

VI
EW

R
D

O
VER

LO
O
K PASS

LAKE
FIEL

D CT

BASKERV
ILLE

W
OO
DL
AN
D

JENNIFER LN
SARAH LN

NAPOLI
LN

SIGNATURE DR

AU
R
O
R
A

CO
N
N
IE
 L
N

CR
EE
K

VI
EW

VI
LL
AG
E

CH
U
R
CH
IL
L

WAY

CONSERVANCY

FIELD
LAKEVIEWUNIVERSITY PL

W
EB
BE
R

PL

W
EST

ER

FR
AN
K

H
IG
H
W
AY

CO
U
N
TY

M

CENTURY AVE

CENTURY

PH
EA
SA
NT
 B
RA
NC
H
 R
D

M
ID
D
LE
TO
N
 S
T

PA
R
M
EN
TE
R
 S
T

CEN
TU
RY H

AR
BO
R
 R
D

N

WISCONSIN & SOUTHERN R
R CO

PLEASANT VIEW GOLF COURSE

SO
UT
H

FO
R
K

N
O
RT
H

FO
R
K LE
OP
OL
D 
W
AY

N HI
GH

KENYON

DR

UNIVERSITY

NORTH

CL
AR
K

PA
R
K

LA
W
N

PL
MAYWOOD

DIS
CO
VER

Y

DR PHEASANT

AVE

LA
KEST

SPRING
DR

LY
N
N
ST

H
IG
H
 R
D

G
LE
N
N

N
IE
BL
ER

COMPANION

PRAIRIE

D
R

PA
TT
Y

N
O
RT
H
BR
O
O
K

BROOKDALE DR

TAFT

CONCORD

M
AR
IG
O
LD

H
IL
L

RD

VA
LL
EY

R
ID
G
E

Q

H
IG
H
LA
N
D

MAT
HEW

S

PL
EA
SA
N
T

UNIVERSITYAVE

FAIRWAYPL

PA
R
VI
EW

PL
EA
SA
N
T 
VI
EW

PI
N
EH
U
R
ST

D
R

AIRPORT

DONNA

LISA
LA
U
R
A

LN

BLVD

SOUTH

LN

BOUNDARY

MA
PL
E

STM
AY
FL
O
W
ER

VI
O
LE
T

G
AM

M
O
N

VOSSPKWY

CAR

CITY LIMITS

U
S 
H
IG
H
W
AY
 1
2 
&
 1
4

PHEASANT

BRANCH

PARK

BLACKHAWK

BLVD

TERRACE

AVELLO
YD

ER
DM
AN
 B
LV
D

PH
IL
 LE
W
IS
 W
AY

PL
EA
SA
N
T

DU
AN
Y 
DR

WAY

CA
YU
G
A

TR
IB
EC
A 
D
R

U
.S
.H
. 1
2

U
S 
H
IG
H
W
AY
 1
2

VE
N
TU
R
E 
AV
E

M
AR
Y 
ST

MIDDLETON MUNICIPAL

AIRPORT - MOREY FIELD

BLVDCA
LLA

CANEEL TRL

M
IS
TY
 V
AL
LE
Y 
D
R

M
IS
TY

FIREFIGHTERS
MEMORIAL

PARK

ED TALLARD
PARK

CI
TY
 L
IM
IT
S

CITY LIMITS

SA
N
D

WHITE
CORAL W

AY

RED
BERYL

OPAL

TR
L

CHARIS TRL

PENNI KLEIN

LIL
Y L
NPA

RM
EN
TE
R 
ST

SPRINGTON DR

PO
IN
T

ST

VI
EW

D
EM
IN
G

DE
M
IN
G

NORTH MENDOTA PARKWAY CORRIDOR AREA

FUTURE NORTH MENDOTA PARKWAY

ST ANNES

M
ID
D
LETO

N
 BEACH

 R
D

BE
LL
E 
FO
NT
AI
NE
 B
LV
D

CARNATION WAY

PA
R
M
EN
TE
R

TAYLOR

CITY LIMITS

CI
TY
 L
IM
IT
S

SC
H
W
AR
TZ
 R
D

HEIGHTS
PARK

City Limit

Future Right-of-Way

Right-of-Way

Private Road

Future Park Land

Parks, Open Space, Conservancy

Airport 3 mile buffer

Shared Use Paths

Existing

Planned - Feasible

Planned - Obstacles

Historic Districts

Bus Stops

Boat Launch

Park

City of Middleton
Official Map

0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Date Exported: 2/15/2022 3:54 PM

Page 5 of 574



History of  Intergovernmental Decisions
with Town of  Westport 

10/3/2024 The Good Neighbor City 1

Presentation and Discussion of Potential Impacts to the...Presentation and Discussion of Potential Impacts to the...Presentation and Discussion of Potential Impacts to the...Presentation and Discussion of Potential Impacts to the...Presentation and Discussion of Potential Impacts to the...Presentation and Discussion of Potential Impacts to the...

Page 1 of 4975



History of  Extraterritorial Zoning with Westport

•1997 - Discussions began regarding a potential intergovernmental 
agreement (IGA)

•1998 - IGA adopted, providing a framework for extraterritorial zoning 
(ETZ)

•2000 – Town/City Adopted a Comprehensive Plan for the Middleton –
Westport Joint Planning Area (JPA)

•2000 – Extraterritorial Zoning Area Established

•2010 – Extraterritorial Zoning Area Expanded

10/3/2024 The Good Neighbor City 2

Page 2 of 4976



Original IGA Planning Area (1998)

10/3/2024 The Good Neighbor City 3

Page 3 of 4977



Comprehensive Plan for the Middleton – Westport JPA

“D. Long-Term Growth Boundary Area

The line shown on the map as the ultimate City of  Middleton 
boundary is NOT going to be established by this document or any 
process related to this joint planning effort. This indicates an area 
which is mutually agreed that the City has a reasonable present or 
demonstrable need for the property if  annexed, and is best suited to 
serve such property with utilities and other services due to natural 
features or close proximity to the City.”

10/3/2024 The Good Neighbor City 4

Page 4 of 4978



Joint Planning Area Map

10/3/2024 The Good Neighbor City 5

Page 5 of 4979



Long-Term Growth Boundary Area (Purple Line)

*Map was created recently based on description of  the Long-Term Growth Boundary Area in 
the Comprehensive Plan for the Middleton – Westport Joint Planning Area. The existing city 
limits extend a bit farther east than the originally-anticipated boundary.

10/3/2024 The Good Neighbor City 6

Page 6 of 4980



ETZ Area Expanded (2010)

10/3/2024 The Good Neighbor City 7

Page 7 of 4981



ETZ Process

•For all parcels that have not been rezoned since the agreement, the 
County rules apply for all existing properties and land uses

•If  a rezoning or conditional use permit (CUP) is requested:
• The property must be rezoned to a district in the City of  Middleton Zoning Ordinance

• Several districts have been added to the City Code (Chapter 35 Extra-Territorial Zoning 
Ordinance Middleton/Westport Joint Planning Area) 

• A proposed rezoning within the ETZ follows these steps:

• Preliminary discussion with City and Town staff

• Preliminary consultation with the Joint Cmte

• Hearing at joint Cmte

• Hearing at CC

• Final action by both City and Town 

10/3/2024 The Good Neighbor City 8

Page 8 of 4982



10/3/2024 The Good Neighbor City 9

Page 9 of 4983



The Good Neighbor City 10

Page 10 of 4984



Page 11 of 4985



Page 12 of 4986



Page 13 of 4987



Page 14 of 4988



Page 15 of 4989



Page 16 of 4990



Page 17 of 4991



Page 18 of 4992



Page 19 of 4993



Page 20 of 4994



Page 21 of 4995



Page 22 of 4996



Page 23 of 4997



Page 24 of 4998



Page 25 of 4999



Page 26 of 49100



Page 27 of 49101



Page 28 of 49102



Page 29 of 49103



Page 30 of 49104



Page 31 of 49105



Page 32 of 49106



Page 33 of 49107



Page 34 of 49108



Page 35 of 49109



Page 36 of 49110



Page 37 of 49111



Page 38 of 49112



Page 39 of 49113



Page 40 of 49114



Page 41 of 49115



Page 42 of 49116



Page 43 of 49117



Page 44 of 49118



Page 45 of 49119



Page 46 of 49120



Page 47 of 49121



Page 48 of 49122



Page 49 of 49123



 
 

 Page 1 of 2 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
CITY OF MIDDLETON     PH  608.821.8394   FAX  608.827.1080 

7426 HUBBARD AVENUE     E-MAIL:  mopitz@cityofmiddleton.us   

MIDDLETON, WI  53562-3118   WEB:  www.cityofmiddleton.us  
 

  

Date: October 3, 2024   

To: Plan Commission  

From: Mark Opitz, City Planner & Zoning Administrator 

Re: Treatment of Building Height in Zoning Ordinance 
 

 

 

At the September 24 PC meeting, commissioners requested that staff prepare one definition of building 

height in relation to the front of the structure / front lot line (as was found in the former ordinance) and 

the other based on Section 28.134 of Madison’s ordinance. 

 

1. Middleton ordinance until February 2024:  A distance to be measured from the mean ground 

eave immediately adjoining the front of the structure to the top of the cornice of a flat roof, or to 

the deck line of a mansard roof, or to a point on the roof directly above the highest wall of a 

shed roof, or to the uppermost point on a round or other arch type roof, or to the midpoint of the 

highest gable on a pitched or hip roof. 

 

 

2. Madison ordinance:  

For accessory buildings and structures, height is measured from the average elevation of the 

approved grade at the front of the building to the highest point of the roof in the case of a flat 

roof, to the deck line of a mansard roof, and to the midpoint of the ridge of a gable, hip, or 

gambrel roof. The average height shall be calculated by using the highest ridge and its attendant 

eave. The eave point used shall be where the roof line crosses the side wall. 

For principal buildings and structures, height is the average of the height of all building 

facades. For each facade, height is measured from the midpoint of the existing grade to the 

highest point on the roof of the building or structure. No individual facade shall be more than 

fifteen percent (15%) higher than the maximum height of the zoning district. 

For new buildings, alterations, additions, or replacement of existing buildings , height shall 

be measured from the natural grade prior to redevelopment. Natural grade shall be determined 

by reference to a survey or other information as determined by the Zoning Administrator.  

Height in the DC (Downtown Core), UOR (Urban Office Residential), UMX (Urban Mixed 

Use), DR1 (Downtown Residential 1) and DR2 (Downtown Residential 2) districts shall be 

measured from the highest ground elevation point at the building base adjacent to any street 

facing facade to the highest point on the roof of the building or structure, including all parapets. 

In these districts accessible roofs, including the minimum structure necessary to provide access, 

shall not be counted as a story.  

Zoning Ordinance (Chapter 10) - Continue Discussion of...

Page 1 of 2124

mailto:mopitz@ci.middleton.wi.us
http://www.cityofmiddleton.us/


 
 

 Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

3. My previous recommendation: 

 

 
 

 

4. This is the Established Grade definition I have proposed adding:  

 

 
 

Page 2 of 2125


	Agenda
	Plan Commission Minutes of September 24, 2024
	Resolution #2024-48: To Approve a Conditional Use Permit for a Medical Clinic and Ambulatory Surgery Center, 8124 Forsythia Street (PC-2673)
	Certified Survey Map - 4 Lot Subdivision, 2159 Allen Blvd. (PC-2654)
	Referral to Committees - Preliminary Plat and Site Plan for Ziegler Farm Neighborhood by Veridian Homes, Lands East and West of High Road (PC-2674)
	Official Map - Concept Review of Proposed Revisions (PC-652)
	Presentation and Discussion of Potential Impacts to the City from the Town of Westport's Petition to Incorporate (PC-525)
	Zoning Ordinance (Chapter 10) - Continue Discussion of Potential Revisions (PC-2611)

